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2.3.1 TRADING ENTITY GENERAL INFORMATION 

NAME OF TRADING ENTITY: g-FleeT Management

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:    76 Boeing Road East

                                          Bedfordview

                                          2008

POSTAL ADDRESS:  Private Bag X1 

                                          Bedfordview

                                          2008

TELEPHONE NUMBER:  +27 11 372 8600

FAX NUMBER: +27 086 669 6926

WEBSITE ADDRESS: www.gfleet.gov.za 
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2.3.2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

AARTO Act Adjudication of Road Traffic Offences Act

AGSA Auditor-General of South Africa

B-BBEE Broad-Based Black  Economic Empowerment

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

COO Chief Operations Officer

BAC Bid Adjudication Committee

BAS Basic Accounting System

CSD Central Supplier Database 

DAC Departmental Adjudication Committee

DoT Department of Transport

DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration 

FIS Fleet Information System

FML Fleet Maintenance Lease

FMS Fleet Management System 

HDIs Historically Disadvantaged Individuals

HoD Head of Department

HR Human Resources

ICT Information and Communication Technology 

KPI Key Performance Indicator

MEC Member of Executive Council

MTEF Medium-Term Expenditure Framework

NT National Treasury

OHS Occupational Health and Safety

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PMDS Performance Management and Development System

PWDs People with Disabilities

SCM Supply Chain Management

SETAs Skills Education Training Authorities 

SLA Service Level Agreement

SMS Senior Management Services

SMME Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises
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2.3.3 OVERVIEW BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)

Ms. Noxolo Maninjwa
Acting CEO

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL YEAR

In the 2016/17 financial year, g-FleeT Management managed to retain the unqualified 
audit opinion that was achieved last year. This achievement effectively served as a 
demonstration of the positive impact of the noble turnaround strategy, which is 
an innovative tool that management used to implement and enhance the overall 
performance of the entity.

During the financial year in question, we continued with the implementation of the 
turnaround strategy to ensure there is shared value of services between staff and 
clients, and this meticulously triggered a continuous improvement in performance. It 
therefore becomes imperative to reflect on the progress made thus far and also give 
an outline of the entity’s great meteoric rise in the year under review.

As a refulgent trading entity, it is important to unequivocally reflect on its positive 
spin-offs and challenges encountered in order to determine immediate interventions 
required as we proceed to paddle and manoeuvre the bumpy road ahead.

• TOP MANAGEMENT’S PERSPECTIVE OF THE ENTITY

Fundamentally, g-FleeT Management acknowledges the shortcomings identified by various stakeholders and moving 
forward, there is unsurpassed commitment to turning the entity around to ensure its financial success and sustainability.

• ACHIEVEMENTS 

Operating within the unravelled, competitive atmosphere of public transport, we are inclined to be as innovative and 
relevant as possible. Therefore, g-FleeT recorded and acknowledged a number of key milestones, some of which are 
deliberately put into perspective below:

In line with one of the strategic objectives to provide clients with reliable fleet, the entity unassumingly kept the average 
age of the fleet at less than four years. This accomplishment was due to the intake of new vehicles procured and the 
withdrawal of old vehicles. 

It went further to track 92% of the in-service vehicles; a 2% over-achievement over the planned 90% that was made 
possible by timeous de-installation and re-installation of tracking devices.

As a measure of commitment, it set out a target to dispatch new permanent vehicles to clients within 25 days. In the 
same breath, a multi-faceted, results-driven approach by a dedicated staff created a space and enabled new vehicles for 
dispatch within an average of 23 days.

In the critical area of the VIP and Pool rental services, the average utilisation was at 66.35%, which exceeded our planned 
annual target of 65%. This was due to the elevated demand in rental from client departments.

At the same time, the entity continued to be within the threshold to the set target of 18 days for turnaround times for 
accident and mechanical repairs. This was largely due to the unparalleled commitment and communication with the 
service provider to ensure that merchants ring-fenced and committed to agreed turnaround times.

As part of our relentless efforts to improve the percentage of clients’ levels of satisfaction with the products and services, 
we appointed an independent service provider to conduct a Customer Satisfaction Survey. This unsurprisingly yielded 
an overall clients’ satisfaction level of 89%, which exceeded the target of 55% set out in the year under review. This 
achievement should implicitly serve as a testament to work done at the entity to improve customer services. Systematic 
surveys and sustained engagements with relevant stakeholders and clients will further provide an opportunity to sensitise 
and re-evaluate the impact of our interventions.
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In order to ensure that we effectively deliver on our service mandate, the entity finalised the service delivery model 
together with the revised organisational structure which is going through the final process of approval by the Department 
of Public Service and Administration (DPSA). In addition, the new lease tariff structure was developed and submitted to 
Gauteng Provincial Treasury for approval.   

From 1 April 2016, the entity implemented SAP system. The entity experienced unexpected glitches with the implementation 
of the system, which have now been fully addressed for the functional models. The procure-to-pay, trial balance and 
general ledger modules have been fully implemented. The next phases are to correlate and infuse modules for revenue 
and accounts receivable and full asset management function.

Another key milestone was the development and approval of the sustainability model for the entity. This model 
fundamentally serves as a guideline and motivation during value- reshaping within the entity and ensure that the entity 
is sustainable in the medium to long term.   

Revenue collection – Auctions (additional information)

NO. AUCTION DATE FLEET SOLD (#) TOTAL PROCEEDS (R)

1 1 April 2016 1 (Judge’s vehicle) 236 338.80

2 1 September 2016 1 (Judge’s vehicle) 583 768.00

3 29 and 30 November 2016 435 29 356 097.20

4 30 and 31 March 2017 472 25 871 063.38

TOTAL 909 56 047 267.38

Payment of service providers

Table 1.1: Analysis of awards to HDIs

CONTRACTS AWARDED TO ENTERPRISES OWNED BY: HISTORICALLY DISADVANTAGED INDIVIDUALS (HDIs)

TOTAL NUMBER (#) TOTAL PERCENTAGE (%) TOTAL VALUE (R)

56 79.80% R 6 691 759.46

Table 1.2: Analysis of awards to women

CONTRACTS AWARDED TO ENTERPRISES OWNED BY: WOMEN

TOTAL NUMBER (#) TOTAL PERCENTAGE (%) TOTAL VALUE (R)

29 32.43% R 2 719 621.31

Table 1.3: Analysis of awards to youth 

CONTRACTS AWARDED TO ENTERPRISES OWNED BY: YOUTH

TOTAL NUMBER (#) TOTAL PERCENTAGE (%) TOTAL VALUE (R)

19 24.02% R 2 013 806.41
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Table 1.4: Analysis of awards to PWDs

CONTRACTS AWARDED TO ENTERPRISES OWNED BY: PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES (PWDs)

TOTAL NUMBER (#) TOTAL PERCENTAGE (%) TOTAL VALUE (R)

1 1.56% R 32 449.74

• CHALLENGES FACED BY THE ENTITY

Although g-FleeT achieved a number of key milestones, there were some challenges encountered during the year  
under review.   

The implementation of National Road Traffic Act (Act 93 of 1996) and the Administration and Adjudication of Road Traffic 
Offences (AARTO) Act (Act 46 of 1998) is creating a huge challenge for g-FleeT to timeously register new vehicles and 
renew licence disks. This is due to the failure of drivers of some client departments to pay their traffic fines. 

As a way forward, the entity has resolved to pay the fines and bill the affected client departments respectively. At the 
same time, we will continue to engage with the clients in an attempt to encourage drivers to pay the traffic fines.

RT46 TRANSVERSAL CONTRACT (Maintenance and Repairs)

Here the entity continued to experience huge challenges with the service provider not delivering credible and up-to-date 
reports. We will, therefore, embark on a mission seeking solutions for submission of routine maintenance reports that the 
service provider must submit in the RT46 contract. 

This greatly affects our ability to report on the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for maintenance and repairs. We will 
continue to work with both the National Department of Transport (DoT) and National Treasury (NT) in order to find an 
amicable solution.

Furthermore, the entity finds itself at odds with certain client departments that are not complying with scheduled service 
maintenance for the vehicles. This is largely due to some departments who do not book and take their vehicles for service 
on time. g-FleeT will continue with necessary consultations and remind them about the scheduled maintenance of their 
vehicles.

30 DAY PAYMENTS

During the year under review, the entity found itself confronted with burning issues concerning the payment of invoices 
within 30 days. This was due to among others, migration from the pastel system to SAP, expired tax clearance certificates 
and delays in registration of suppliers as vendors on SAP and the Central Supplier Database (CSD). 

We will continue to engage and harness our relationship with the vendor management division at National Treasury to 
resolve issues around suppliers’ registration. It is also prudent for us to encourage suppliers to register timeously and to 
update their documents on the database.

RT57 CONTRACT (Vehicle Procurement)

The entity continued to face challenges in placing orders for vehicles in the first and second quarters of the financial 
year due to delays in the awarding of the National Transversal RT57 contract. The RT57 contract was only finalised in 
September 2016.

HIGH VACANCY RATE AND INADEQUATE SKILLS

The entity continues to experience challenges with its high vacancy rate. Currently, it stands at 30%, an alarming figure 
that is comparatively too high. This is due to the moratorium on vacant posts instituted by the department. This will 
continue to impact negatively on our operations and hamper our ability to effectively and efficiently render services due 
to inadequate skills levels.
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REVENUE COLLECTION  

Another sore point is client departments that do not honour their debt on time for various reasons. This also impacts 
negatively on the entity’s cash flow and may harm future development.

The entity adopted a phased approach for implementing the suspension of fuel cards for owing client departments. The 
first phase targeted the top ten owing departments as at 28 February 2017. The total debt for the top ten constituted 
83% of the total debtors’ book.  

Most departments lagging behind with payments were stringently issued notices with good intention to suspend fuel 
cards if their accounts are not brought up to date on or before 20 March 2017. 

The next phase will be a suspension of fuel cards for other non-paying client departments. The move to issue notices to 
suspend the fuel cards for the top ten owing client departments resulted in increased payments, therefore an additional 
amount of R120 million was recouped in the process. The next phase will come into fruition in June 2017; this is expected 
to result in further improvements in payments from client departments.

FUTURE PLANS 

In the 2017/18 financial year, we will consciously focus on the implementation of turnaround strategy, the Annual 
Performance Plan (APP) and the revised 2014 - 2019 Strategic Plan to ensure continuous rejuvenation of the entity.

In pursuit of progress we urgently need to implement strategies to ensure the sustainability of the entity. To this end, 
we will begin with the process to immensely put into action phase one of the sustainability model and Information and 
Communication Technology (ICT) strategy.

A swift and energised emphasis will be directed at ensuring that we have adequate capacity and a reliable fleet to meet 
clients’ needs in various regions and districts.  

The Customer Satisfaction Survey conducted in the previous financial year indicated a deliberate and significant 
improvement on the clients’ levels of satisfaction with our services. However, it also put sharp pointers on areas with 
low satisfaction ratings that require a reworked plan. The entity will zoom in and put into motion relevant interventions 
required to speedily address those issues.  

The task to duly appoint a new service provider for the vehicle-tracking services tender is underway and should be finalised 
in the new financial year. The entity is using the open tender system which is aimed solely at promoting transparency in 
the procurement process. This emphasises the entity’s overwhelmingly commitment to promoting and adopting a zero-
tolerance approach towards fraud and corruption which is so endemic in the workplace.

We are in the process of reviewing the current Service Level Agreements (SLAs) and will be consulting our client 
departments to ensure that revised contracts are duly signed off. The review process was necessitated by concerns raised 
directly with us and therefore we have, as a matter of principle, committed to addressing them. 

The process to procure a new resourceful Fleet Management System (FMS) is underway and this year the entity will be 
conducting market research to identify the best system to replace the current Fleet Information System (FIS).   

In relation to the construction of new offices and wellness centre, the entity will soon conclude the final stage of the 
planning process with the assistance of the Gauteng Department of Infrastructure Development.
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• OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE TRADING ENTITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Receipts 

The entity’s main source of income is derived from the charging of leasing of vehicles and interest received on a credit 
bank balance. This is supplemented with the income received through the sale of redundant vehicles at auctions and 
income received from transport provided to government employees travelling from Pretoria to Johannesburg as a result 
of provincial departments being moved from Pretoria after 1994. 

The results of the actual collections for 2016/17 and the comparative year are depicted in Table 2.3.4.1 below.

Table 2.3.1: Revenue collected 

20162017 2015/2016

Entity receipts Estimate 
Actual 

amount 
collected

(Over)/under 
collection

Estimate 
Actual 

amount 
collected

(Over)/under 
collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Revenue from exchange 
transactions – leasing of 
vehicles

819 583 730 993 88 590 776 856 819 042 541

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions – interest from 
bank

19 473 28 307 -8 834 17 703 17 907 1 566

Transport fees 3 400 1 457 1 943 1 794 1 728 1 672

Auction fees 58 000 56 047 1 953 64 749 49 148 8 852

Total 900 456 816 804 83 652 861 102 887 826 12 630

Total revenue from services rendered by the entity increased to R877 million (2015\16: R805 million). Revenue from 
leasing of vehicles increased by 11% to R767 million (2015/16: R691 million). This increase is as a result of the system 
clean-up of billing that was carried out.

Interest earned from positive bank account increased by 77% to R31,6 million (2015/16: R17,9 million). The increase is 
due to higher balances in funds held with financial institutions and the investment account opened with South African 
Reserve Bank which offers a higher return. The higher balances were due to decrease in total expenditure during 2015/16 
from the levels in the previous financial year. 

Revenue from auction of vehicles decreased by 28% to R56 million (2015/16: R77,8 million). This decrease is due to the 
fact that less vehicles were auctioned compared to the previous year. 
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Table 2.3.2: Expenditure versus budget 

2016/2017 2015/2016

Programme name
Final 

appropriation
Actual

expenditure
(Over)/under 
expenditure 

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under 
expenditure 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Office of the CEO 2 935 2 674 261  2 901 2 334 567

Office of the COO 2 849 1398 1 451 1 532 1 398 134

Office of the CFO 14 723 15 393 -670 41 379 26 389 14 990

Financial services 15 010 16 517 -1 507 - - -

Corporate Services 65 388 28 214 37 174 51 442 30 213 21 229

Marketing and  
Communication

6 441 8 475 -2 034 10 920 9 939 981

Maintenance Services 86 373 117 081 -30 708 98 633 117 075 - 18 442

Transport Support 
Service

214 673 190 958 23 715 200 275 179 769 20 506

Permanent Fleet 314 904 221 749 93 155 303 896 317 568 -13 672

VIP and Pool 15 825 16 542 -717 16 457 16 833 -376

Total 739 121 619 001 120 120 727 435 701 517 25 918

Total expenditure decreased by 2% to R579,7 million (2015/16: R590,4 million). This is due to lower expenditure incurred 
on operating expenditure, accidents and impairment losses and operating leases. Investment in vehicles also decreased 
as compared to the previous financial year.  

Employee costs decreased by 3% to R75,3 million (2015/16: R77,7 million). This decrease is due to the entity not filling 
positions as they become vacant due to the moratorium on the filling of vacancies. 

The surplus for the year increased by 31% to R297 million (2015/16: R223 million). The increase is the result of increased 
revenue and a decrease in expenditure. 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

The entity has a strong asset base which is reflective of the operations. Significant asset classes include finance lease 
receivables, property, plant and equipment and cash funds. The liabilities are limited to finance lease obligation and 
payables which arise from the entity’s operations.

The carrying value non-current assets increased by 4% to R1,250 billion (2015/16: R1,207 billion). The entity acquired 
motor vehicles to the value of R226 million. There were also additions to furniture and fixtures totaling R1,7 million, 
assets under construction, improvements totaling R1,082 million and computer software improvements to the value of 
R1,9 million. 

The receivables from exchange transactions increased by 37% to R205 million (2015/16: R150 million). The debtor’s days 
decreased by 22% (the ratio indicating debt levels to revenue generated from such debtors) is 119 days on 31 March 
2017 (31 March 2016: 152 days). 

The entity was able to convert its debt receivable into cash and this is reflected in the increase of cash funds to  
R743,1 million (2015/16: R514,3 million). This combined with effective and efficient expenditure management are the 
main contributing factors to the increase in the cash funds. 

The accumulated surplus increased from R1,808 billion on 31 March 2016 to R2,106 billion on 31 March 2017. 

Cash Flow Statement 

The cash generated from operating activities decreased to R810 million (2015/16: R882 million). This is mainly due to 
repairs and maintenance and tracking expense payments in the current financial period. 

The cash spent on investing activities was at levels of R75 million lower than the previous financial year. This is mainly due 
to reduction in vehicle purchases impacted by RT57 contracts. The acquisition of property, plant and equipment increased 
to R216 million (31 March 2016: R324 million). The number of allocated vehicles is demand driven and fluctuates 
depending on clients’ expansion plans and programmes. 

Tariffs 

Vehicles are purchased via the RT57 contract administered by NT and, after delivery, are captured onto the FIS. For vehicles 
purchased through Fleet Maintenance Lease (FML) model, a monthly lease tariff is charged for the vehicle. For vehicles 
purchased through the old operating model, a fixed tariff is charged selected from a table on FIS. A daily tariff is charged 
for VIP and Pool. Added to the billing are the direct costs for fuel, oil and toll fees.

The tariffs have been reviewed in the current financial period; the tariff structure was submitted to Provincial Treasury for 
approval.

Free services 

No free services were rendered that would have yielded significant revenue had a tariff been charged. 

Sales of capital assets 

The vehicles that reached the end of their respective life cycles were sold at public auctions.
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Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Seven cases of irregular expenditure were reported during the current financial year, three of which come from the 
previous financial year. Irregular expenditure relates to the expiry of contracts relating to leasing of property for the four 
regional offices (Cape Town, Durban, East London and Bloemfontein), leasing of office equipment (printers), the entity 
making use of MTN as cellphone service provider without the existence of a contract, expired vehicle tracker contracts 
and an expired security services contract. 

Several transactions of fruitless and wasteful expenditure were reported during the current year and were largely related 
to the interest charged by suppliers due to late payments and unauthorised petrol card usage. 

Supply chain management

The entity deals with orders below R500 000 thresholds while tenders are awarded by the Bid Adjudication Committee 
(BAC) of which the entity has a representative. In the current financial period there were no tenders awarded by the 
Departmental Adjudication Committee (DAC) relating to the entity.

Gifts and donations received in kind from non-related parties

The entity received gifts such as calendars, notebooks, pens, mugs, etc. All these gifts are signed and fully declared in the 
g-FleeT register for gifts and donations. The entity further also received test drives from different manufacturers.

Exemptions and deviations received from NT

The trading entity received no exemption in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1996) or Treasury 
Regulations or deviations from the financial reporting requirements for the current and/or previous financial year.

Events after the reporting date

Adjusting events

The third party claims received after 31 March 2017.

The entity will also look at any irregular expenditure condoned after submission of the Annual Financial Statements.

Non-adjusting events

Third party claims issued to the entity after 31 March 2017.

2.3.4 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS/APPRECIATION

I wish to thank the Member of the Executive Council (MEC) and the Head of Department (HOD) who have invested a 
great deal in assisting g-FleeT during these challenging times. I would also like to thank g-FleeT management and staff 
for their commitment, dedication and hard work in striving to achieve the mandate of the entity.

_______________________

Acting CEO
DDG: g-FleeT Management 
Ms. N. Maninjwa
Date: 31 May 2017
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2.3.5  STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF THE ACCURACY  
OF THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent. 

The Annual Report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the Annual Report as issued by National 
Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash standard and the 
relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements and for the judgements 
made in this information.  

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control that has been 
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human 
resources information and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources 
information and the financial affairs of the department for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Yours faithfully, 

______________________

Mr. R. Swartz
Accounting Officer 
Department of Roads and Transport
Date: 31 May 2017
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2.3.6 STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

Vision 

We keep government service delivery on the move.

Mission

We will achieve our vision by:

• Providing effective, competitive and efficient fleet services to government.

• Focusing on providing reliable fleet to meet client needs.

• Building and maintaining sustainable stakeholder relations.

Values

Furthermore, the core values applicable to the provincial government were revised and reflect as follows:

“…Competence, Accountability, Integrity and Responsiveness…”

These values are all underpinned by the concept of team work and will apply to the entity as well as to all officials of 
g-FleeT. A detailed description of what each core value encapsulates is outlined below:

CORE VALUES DETAILED DESCRIPTION

COMPETENCE

We commit to be competent and excellent at all times.

We undertake to deliver services with passion, excitement and enthusiasm.

–  Our people are able to do the tasks they are appointed to do, live our values and always strive for 
excellence.

– We all deliver on our outcomes and targets with quality, on budget and in time.

–  We demonstrate an understanding of and work together to achieve our role in our Constitutional 
and electoral mandate.

ACCOUNTABILITY

We pledge to be answerable to our stakeholders in the execution of our mandate 
and service delivery activities.

We commit to deliver a service that meets our stakeholders’ expectations.

– We have a clear understanding of our objectives, roles, delegations and responsibilities. 

– We are committed to deliver agreed outputs on time.

– We hold each other accountable and know we can trust to do and we say we will.

–  As individuals, we take responsibility and ownership for our outcomes and accept the consequences 
of failure to do so.
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CORE VALUES DETAILED DESCRIPTION

INTEGRITY

We commit to be ethical, professional, principled, fair and just in our conduct.

We pledge to uphold sound principles of institutional management and efficient 
systems and processes in service delivery.

– We seek for truth and greater understanding of it in each situation and we do the right things.

– We are honest, show respect and live out our positive values.

– We are reliable and trustworthy, doing what we say we will.

–  There are no grey areas with integrity applying at all levels in all instances, ensuring we are  
corrupt free.

RESPONSIVENESS

We shall be approachable, receptive and quick to respond to stakeholder needs.

–  We take our fellow public servants seriously, listening and hearing their voice. (listening a lot and 
talking less) 

–  We respond with action timeously, always asking: is this the right response? Where could we 
potentially be wrong? How can we do it better?

–  We engage collaboratively with each other, our stakeholders and the media providing full 
information.

–  Our focus is the past, present and future public service citizens, and responding as their government 
for the best results for the people we serve. They tell us how well we respond.

2.3.7 LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

The entity’s operations are largely regulated by the National Transport Circular (No. 4 of 2000), which governs all matters 
relating to the utilisation of government-owned transport.

Regulation 19 issued in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (1999) governs the operations of the organisation in 
terms of its policy and reporting framework, establishment, capital requirements, disposal of assets, surrender of surplus 
funds and financial reporting. In addition, the following legislative mandates are applicable: 

• Cross-Border Road Transport Act (Act 4 of 1998).

• Road Traffic Act (Act 29 of 1989).

• Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

• National Environmental Management Act (Act 107 of 1998).  

• Road Traffic Management Corporation Act (Act 20 of 1999).

• National Road Traffic Act (Act 93 of 1996).

• National Road Traffic Safety Act (Act 12 of 1972).

• Gauteng Transport Framework Revision Act (Act 8 of 2002).

• Gauteng Public Passenger Road Transport Act (Act 7 of 2001).

• Gauteng Transport Infrastructure Act (Act 8 of 2001).

• Gauteng Planning and Development Act (Act 3 of 2003).

• Provincial Road Traffic Act (Act 10 of 1997).

• Gauteng Toll-Roads Bill (2005).

• Road Traffic Act (Act 29 of 1989).

• Administrative Adjudication of Road Traffic Offences Act (Act 46 of 1998).

• Gauteng Transport Framework Revision Amendment Act (Act 3 of 2008).
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Policy and other mandates

The following policy mandates are applicable: 

• The White Paper on National Transport Policy.

• The National Land Transport Strategic Framework.

• Provincial Policy and Legislative Mandates.

• The Gauteng White Paper on Transport Policy.

• The Gauteng Transport Legislative Framework.

• Gauteng Legislation on Development Planning.

2.3.8 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Ac#ng	  CEO	  

Ms.	  Noxolo	  Maninjwa	  

COO	  

Mr	  Victor	  Mhangwana	  

DIR:	  PERMANENT	  FLEET	  

Ms	  Ravanne	  MaChews	  

DIR:	  TSS	  

Ms	  Salomie	  JaGa	  

Ac#ng	  DIR:	  
MAINTENANCE	  

Mr.Sifiso	  Mhlongo	  	  

DIR:	  VIP/POOL	  	  

Mr.	  Kendridge	  
Mathabathe	  	  

DIR:	  CORPORATE	  
SERVICES	  

Ms.	  Andile	  Ngcobo	  

Ac#ng	  CFO	  

Mr.	  Lebogang	  Jantjies	  

Ac#ng	  DIR:	  FINANCE	  

Mr.	  Matodzi	  
Mamatsinya	  
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2.4.1 AUDITOR-GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to provide reasonable 
assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance against predetermined objectives 
is included in the report to management, with material findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives 
heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 303 of the Report of the Auditor General, published as Part E: Financial Information.
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2.4.2 OVERVIEW OF ENTITY PERFORMANCE

Service delivery environment for 2016/17

This section deals with external factors that have had an impact on the ability of the entity to deliver on its commitments 
during the financial year.

RT46: Fuel and maintenance services contract

During the year under review, the provision of maintenance and fuel management services under the transversal RT46-
2014 contract to government continued to experience challenges. 

The provision of the report by the service provider, on vehicles due for routine maintenance to establish compliance levels, 
had challenges regarding the accuracy of information provided. The entity continued to work with the service provider 
to improve the quality of information. During the fourth quarter, the information from the service provider was late and 
could not be included in the quarterly performance report. The entity has written to the transversal service provider, 
warning them of breach of service levels and the intention to implement consequence management.

RT57: Procurement of vehicles contract

The transversal contract RT57 issued by NT for the procurement of vehicles, which was due in April 2016 was only 
approved in September 2016. The delay caused a backlog in the procurement of new vehicles and the spending of the 
allocated budget.

The under-serviced debt owed to the entity by its clients departments

Departments had financial difficulties which resulted in them not settling the accounts as planned. The entity adopted a 
phased in approach of deactivation of fuel cards for non-paying departments.

Implementation of this approach in February 2017 resulted in improved collections from the concerned debtors.

Organisational environment for 2016/2017

This section deals with internal factors that have had an impact on the ability of the entity to deliver on its commitments 
during the financial year under review.

Improve audit outcome: The process of implementing the turnaround plan to improve the performance and internal 
control systems of the entity is still underway and is not yet complete.

Protect movable assets through vehicle tracking: The new tracking contract was still under supply chain evaluation 
during the fourth quarter and is expected to be awarded in the next financial year.

High vacancy rate: The entity continues to experience challenges with its high vacancy rate. Currently, it stands at 
30%, an alarming figure that is comparatively too high. This is due to the moratorium of vacant posts instituted by the 
Department. 
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2.4.3 STRATEGIC OUTCOME-ORIENTED GOALS

The following strategic priorities/goals represent the 2014 – 2019 Strategic Plan and 2016/2017 APP, to facilitate 
the turnaround strategy and achievement of g-FleeT’s Medium Term-Expenditure Framework (MTEF) goals:

Strategic goal 1 (Summary) Provide fleet management services that are effective, efficient and client-
focused.

Goal statement Provide reliable fleet and quality services to meet our client’s needs in an effective and efficient 
manner.

Justification This goal will ensure that services offered to client meet expectations and that public funds are 
utilised to provide a services to support the mandates of client departments. 

Strategic goal 2 (Summary) Sustainable and well-governed organisation.
Goal statement Ensure a well-run organisation by designing and maintaining effective systems and process that will 

result in optimal use of the entity. 

Justification This goal will ensure that financial processes, systems and controls will be implemented and 
monitored by staff with the requisite expertise. 

2.4.4 PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME

PROGRAMME 1: OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES

This programme is responsible for providing fleet management services that are effective, efficient and client-focused.

The following is the sub-programme structure:

• Permanent Fleet.

• Fleet Maintenance.

• Transport Support Services.

• Customer Management Services.

Strategic objective 1: Provide clients with reliable fleet.

Programme name: OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Strategic 
objective

Performance 
indicator

Actual 
achievement 
2015/2016

Planned target
2016/2017

Actual 
achievement
2016/2017

Deviation 
from planned 

target to actual 
achievement 

for 2016/2017 

Comment on 
deviations (reason)

Provide clients 
with reliable 
fleet.

Average age of 
allocated fleet.

4 years. ≤4 years. 3.4 years. +0.6 years. The intake of new 
vehicles procured and 
the withdrawal of old 
vehicles allowed for the 
target to be achieved.

Percentage 
of vehicles 
compliant to 
scheduled 
maintenance.

83.26%. 70%. 89.75%. +19.75%. -

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

N/A.
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Changes to planned targets and objectives

None.

Programme expenditure 

2016/2017 2015/2016

Sub- programme 
name

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under 
expenditure

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under 
expenditure

Permanent Fleet 314 904 221 749 93 155 303 896 317 568 -13 672

Fleet Maintenance 86 373 117 081 -30 708 98 633 117 075 -18 442

Total 401 277 338 830 62 447 402 529 434 643 -32 114

Strategic objective 2: To provide quality and value-added client service by monitoring vehicle location and 
maintaining turn-around times of 20 days for services to achieve client satisfaction of 55%.

The following is the sub-programme structure:

• Transport Support Services.
• Maintenance.
• Customer Management Services.

Programme name: OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Strategic objective
Performance 

indicator

Actual 
achievement 
2015/2016

Planned 
target

2016/2017

Actual 
achievement
2016/2017

Deviation 
from planned 

target 
to actual 

achievement 
for 2016/2017 

Comment on deviations 
(reason)

To provide quality 
and value-added 
client service by 
monitoring vehicle 
location and 
maintaining turn-
around times of 20 
days for services 
to achieve client 
satisfaction of 55%.

Percentage of in-
service vehicles 
tracked.

80% (5752). 90% (6278). 92% (6399). +2%. De-installations and  
re-installations were done 
timeously due to the auction.

(Total current fleet = 7195 less 
the exempt vehicles of 219, totals 
6976)

100% 
In-service = 6977

Exempt vehicles:
National Prosecuting Authority 
(NPA): 107

Department of Justice and 
Constitutional Development: 97
Premier’s Office: 9
Department of Mineral Resources: 
6
Total = 219

Average 
turnaround time 
for accidents 
and mechanical 
repairs.

20 days. 20 days. 18 days. +2 days. Close monitoring of the service 
provider.

Percentage of 
client satisfaction 
level for all 
g-FleeT’s client 
departments.

45% (14/15 
financial year)

55%. 89%. +34%. Over achievement of target on 
survey results.

Strategic intervention of urgent 
priority areas as highlighted on 
the report.
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Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

N/A.

Changes to planned targets and objectives

None.

Programme expenditure 

Sub-programme 
name

2016/2017 2015/2016

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under 
expenditure

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Transport Support 
Services 214 673 190 958 23 715 200 275 179 769 20 506

Fleet Maintenance 86 373 117 081 -30 708 98 633 117 075 -18 442

Customer 
Management 
Services

6 441 8 475 -2 034 10 920 9 939 981

Total 307 487 316 514 -9 027 309 828 306 783 3 045

Programme 2: Corporate and Financial Management

This programme is responsible for ensuring a well-run organisation by designing and maintaining effective systems and 
processes that will result in optimal use of the entity’s assets in delivery of services.

The following are the sub-programme structures:

• Permanent Fleet.

• VIP and Pool Services.

• Finance.

• Human Resources (HR).

• ICT.
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Strategic objective1: Optimise return on investment. 

Programme name:  Operations and Finance

Strategic 
objective

Performance 
indicator

Actual 
achievement 
2015/2016

Planned target
2016/2017

Actual 
achievement
2016/2017

Deviation 
from planned 

target to actual 
achievement for 

2016/2017 

Comment on 
deviations (reason)

Optimise return 
on investment 
by reviewing 
tariff structure, 
reducing 
inventory to 25 
days and achieve 
rental utilisation 
of 65% to ensure 
sustainability.

Average number 
of business days 
from delivery of 
vehicle to active 
vehicle contract 
(permanent 
vehicles only).

29 days. 25 business days. 23 business days. + 2 business days. Commitment and 
dedication of all staff 
in the preparation 
process allowed 
for the target to be 
achieved.

Average rental 
utilisation of 
available VIP 
self-drive and 
Pool fleet.

71.94% average 
rental utilisation.

Average rental 
utilisation of 65%.

66.35%. + 1,35%.     Due to slightly 
elevated rental 
demand from clients.

Annual tariff 
structure 
submitted to NT 
for approval.

New Key 
Performance 
Indicator (KPI).

Reviewed 
tariff structure 
submitted to NT 
for approval.

Reviewed tariff 
structure has been 
submitted to NT 
for approval. 

N/A. N/A.

Sustainability 
Model 
developed and 
approved.

New KPI. Approved 
sustainability 
model.

Sustainability 
model has been 
developed and 
approved.

N/A. N/A.

Percentage 
decrease in 
average debtor 
days.

33%. 15% (128 days). 22% (119 days). 7% (9 days). Departments had 
financial difficulties 
which resulted in 
them not settling the 
accounts as planned. 
The entity adopted a 
phased in approach 
of deactivation of fuel 
cards for non-paying 
departments.

Implementation 
of this approach 
in February 2017 
resulted in improved 
collection from the 
concerned debtors.

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 

The entity will continue to suspend the petrol cards of all non-paying departments. 

Changes to planned targets and objectives

None.
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Programme expenditure

Sub-programme 
name

2016/2017 2015/2016

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under 
expenditure

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

VIP and Pool 
Services 15 825 16 542 -717 16 457 16 833 -376

Finance 15 010 16 517 -1 507

Total 30 835 33 059 -2 224 16 457 16 833 -376

Strategic objective 2: Engender organisational and culture change  

Programme name: Operations and Finance

Strategic 
objective

Performance 
indicator

Actual 
achievement 
2015/2016

Planned target
2016/2017

Actual 
achievement
2016/2017

Deviation 
from planned 

target 
to actual 

achievement 
for 2016/2017 

Comment on deviations 
(reason)

Engender 
organisational 
and culture 
change.

Percentage of 
invoices paid within 
30 days from receipt 
of invoice.

90%. 100%. 83%. -17%. Suppliers not properly 
registered on CSD. 

Invalid tax clearance 
certificates for suppliers.

Unresolved pricing 
disputes with vehicle 
manufactures.

Audit outcome 
(Auditor-General).

Unqualified 
opinion.

Clean audit. Unqualified 
opinion

Material 
misstatement of 
current assets 
and revenue.

Late payment.

Qualified 
opinion on 
performance 
information.

Billing data to be analysed 
for cut-off and over-billing 
with a view to process 
accounting adjustment.

All invoices to be paid 
through purchase order.

Contracts to be monitored 
regularly. 

Employee 
satisfaction rate/ 
percentage.

- 50%. - -50%. Request for approval to 
continue with the rollout 
of the Climate Satisfaction 
Survey in the 17/18 
financial year. 

Percentage of 
employee PMDS 
assessments 
completed.

90%. 100%. 92%. -8%. Total staff= 241 (100%)

Submitted = 222 (92%)

Not submitted = 19(8%) 
due to non-compliance, 
transferred staff, 
resignations, deceased and 
retired staff still in the K8 
staff register. 

EPMDS report not yet 
finalised.

Entity to engage 
E-government.
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Programme name: Operations and Finance

Strategic 
objective

Performance 
indicator

Actual 
achievement 
2015/2016

Planned target
2016/2017

Actual 
achievement
2016/2017

Deviation 
from planned 

target 
to actual 

achievement 
for 2016/2017 

Comment on deviations 
(reason)

Engender 
organisational 
and culture 
change.

Review, approval 
and implementation 
of organisational 
structure.

New KPI. Submit 
organisational 
structure to 
DPSA for 
approval.

Draft structure 
for consultation 
developed and 
submitted on 
12/02/2016.

30%. Moratorium on vacant 
post instituted by the 
Department. 

Service delivery model and 
proposed structure for the 
entity is undergoing DPSA 
approval process.

Approved ICT 
strategy/plan.

Revised draft 
strategy (50%).

ICT strategy 
approved by 
HOD.

ICT strategy 
approved by 
HOD (100%).

100%. Strategy approved after 
it was discussed and 
adopted by the IT steering 
committee.

Percentage of 
maintenance spent 
on (automotive) 
township businesses.

3% 2% 2% - Continuous engagement 
with RT46 service provider 
to support township 
businesses through RT46 
contract.

Implementation of 
the apprenticeship 
programme.

New KPI. Approved 
apprenticeship 
plan.

Apprenticeship 
plan approved.

N/A. N/A.

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 

Finance – The finance procedures have been revised to enable the finance teams to check the accuracy of the registration 
of suppliers on the CSD.  In cases of expired tax clearance certificates; the invoices from these suppliers will be returned 
to address challenges before the invoices are scanned for payment.

HR – Continued efforts by the HR team in ensuring that staff has a full understanding as to how the PMDS contributes 
to the entity’s success and failure in conjunction with the employees growth and development.

Changes to planned targets and objectives

None.

Programme expenditure 

Sub-programme 
name

2016/2017 2015/2016

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under 
expenditure

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Corporate 
Services

65 388 28 214 37 174 51 442 30 213 21 229

Total 65 388 28 214 37 174 51 442 30 213 21 229



Gauteng Provincial Government | Department of Roads and Transport | Annual Report | 2016/2017

| 268 |

2.4.5 CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan

2016/2017 2015/2016

Infrastructure 
projects

Final 
appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

(Over)/under 
expenditure

Final 
appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

(Over)/under 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

New and 
replacement 
assets 

308 000 226  065 81 935 299 926 312 191 
-12 265

Existing 
infrastructure 
assets 

0 0 0
0 0

0

Upgrades and 
additions 21 038 1 082 19 956 8 302 5 303 2 999

Rehabilitation, 
renovations and 
refurbishments

0 0 0
0 0 0

Maintenance and 
repairs 0 0 0 0 0 0

Infrastructure 
transfer 0 0 0 0 0 0

Current 0 0 0 0 0 0

Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 329 038 227 147 101 891 308 229 317 494 -9 266



PART C
2.5 Governance



Gauteng Provincial Government | Department of Roads and Transport | Annual Report | 2016/2017

| 270 |

2.5.1 INTRODUCTION

The trading entity’s commitment to maintain the highest standards of governance is fundamental to the effective 
management of public finances and resources. Furthermore, it is important to reassure stakeholders that the trading 
entity has good governance structures in place to effectively, efficiently and economically utilise State resources, which 
are funded by tax payers.

2.5.2 RISK MANAGEMENT, FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 

Risk Management at the Department assumes the responsibility for Enterprise-Wide.

Risk Management through coordination of the identification, analysis, mitigation and monitoring of all risks facing the 
trading entity and ensures compliance with the PFMA (1999) and other related legislature.

The main objective of the risk management approach is to establish and maintain appropriate systems and processes to 
ensure effective and efficient management of risks facing the trading entity.

The Strategic Risk Assessment for 2017/18 has been approved and the Operational Risk Assessment for all business 
units was also completed for 2017/18. Approval for some of the Operational Risk Register is still to be effected. Risk 
management awareness sessions for the entire staff were conducted and a large number of employees were covered. 
These are significant achievements for risk management processes in ensuring that a strong risk management culture is 
instilled in the operations and business of the entity.

The entity subscribes to the zero-tolerance stance against fraud and corruption. In a bid to ensure that the fraud and 
corruption activities are eliminated, the entity works in partnership with the Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport 
and the Gauteng Provincial Treasury. The Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport has an approved Fraud Prevention 
Plan that includes g-FleeT Management.

The Fraud Risk Assessment for the entity was concluded with the assistance of the Directorate of Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption from the Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport.

Progress made in addressing the identified risks

As per the risk management philosophy, only the top ten high risks are treated as urgent and should be regularly 
monitored. The trading entity therefore identified multiple high risks but prioritised the top eight high risks which had a 
residual rating of high to medium. The identified risks will be closely monitored. 

Of the top eight high inherent risks, two showed a high residual rating i.e. there were no sufficient controls to manage the 
risks. Mitigating factors to manage the risks were provided for an improvement of the control environment. The trading 
entity will monitor the movement of the rating and provide progress report on a quarterly basis to the Audit Committee. 

All the eight risks are still applicable and will be monitored on a continuous basis. The entity has implemented action plans 
to address some of the risks, while other risks still need to be addressed. 

2.5.3 MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The entity, through the internal control systems monitored by the office of the MEC, ensures that all its Senior Management 
Service (SMS) members declare their interest on an annual basis in line with the requirements of the Public Service 
Commission. 

Employees on levels 1 to 12 are encouraged to request permission to perform work outside their normal remunerative 
work. In relation to the supply chain management processes, directors of all companies submitting quotations with the 
intention to provide goods or services are required to complete SBD 4 declaration forms.

2.5.4 CODE OF CONDUCT 

The entity utilises the Department of Public Service and Administration Code of Conduct. Cases of misconduct are 
escalated to the Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport for investigation.
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2.5.5 HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

Establishment of Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Committee

The entity is in the process of establishing a functional OHS Committee. As it stands, the following members have been 
appointed:-

• 4 fire fighters. 

• 5 fire marshalls. 

• 4 first aiders.

• 2 safety, health and environment representatives.

• 5 management representatives (i.e. Facilities and Security, Labour Relations and Wellness, OHS Specialist, Internal 
Controls and Vehicle Maintenance).

• The OHS task team consisting of Employer and Labour representatives was established to conduct OHS audits in all 
DRT offices and to present audit findings and recommendations to the management and audit committee.

2.5.6 PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

Reporting by Reporting to Method Matters reported Timing of the report
Action taken on 
matters report

Internal Audit Audit Committee. Formal report, 
reporting in meetings.

Any relevant matter. Varies. Varies.

Audit Committee Accounting 
authority/officer.

Minutes of Audit 
Committee meetings.

Any relevant matter. Varies. Varies.

Accounting authority/
officer 

MEC. Formal report, 
reporting in meetings.

Any relevant matter. Varies. Varies.

g-FleeT management: 
CEO, COO and CFO 

Roads and Transport 
(R&T) Portfolio 
Committee.

Presentation. First quarter (2016/17).
Financial and non-
financial performance.

April – June 2016. A report is sent and 
presented to the R&T 
Portfolio Committee. 

g-FleeT management: 
CEO, COO and CFO 

R&T Portfolio 
Committee.

Presentation. Second quarter 
(2016/17). 
Financial and non-
financial performance.

July – Sept 2016 A report is sent to 
the R&T Portfolio 
Committee. 

g-FleeT management: 
CEO, COO and CFO 

R&T Portfolio 
Committee.

Presentation. Third quarter (2016/17).
Financial and non-
financial performance.

October – December 
2016.

A report is sent and 
presented to the R&T 
Portfolio committee. 

g-FleeT management: 
CEO, COO and CFO 

R&T Portfolio 
Committee.

Presentation. Responses to fourth 
quarter (2016/17) and 
first quarter reports 
(2016/17).

01 September 2016 A Report is sent and 
presented to the R&T 
Portfolio Committee. 

g-FleeT management: 
CEO, COO and CFO

R&T Portfolio 
Committee.

Presentation. 16/17 financial year 
annual budget.

05 May 2016/ A report is sent and 
presented to the R&T 
Portfolio Committee.

g-FleeT management: 
CEO, COO and CFO 

R&T Portfolio 
Committee.

Presentation. Responses to questions 
raised by the Portfolio 
Committee on the 
second quarter (16/17) 
report.

24 November 2016 A Report is sent to 
the R&T Portfolio 
Committee. 

g-FleeT management: 
CEO, CFO and COO

Audit Committee. Presentation. First quarter (2016/17).
Financial and non-
financial performance.

April – June 2016. A report is sent and 
presented to the 
Audit Committee. 
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Reporting by Reporting to Method Matters reported Timing of the report
Action taken on 
matters report

g-FleeT management: 
CEO, CFO and COO

Audit Committee. Presentation. Second quarter 
(2016/17).
Financial and non-
financial performance.

July – September 
2016.

A report is sent and 
presented to the 
Audit Committee.

g-FleeT management: 
CEO, CFO and COO

Audit Committee. Presentation. Third quarter (2016/17).
Financial and non-
financial performance. 

October – December 
2016.

A report is sent and 
presented to the R&T 
Portfolio Committee.

2.5.7 SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

Resolution 
No.

Subject Response by the Department Resolved (Yes/No)

4.1 That the Department provides the 
Committee with a progress report 
detailing the effectiveness of measures 
put in place to address the recurrence 
of restatement of corresponding figures 
within 30 days after adoption hereof and 
thereafter every quarter continuing up 
until the end of June 2017.

The FIS project update has been delayed for roll 
out in the new financial year. The delayed roll out is 
due to additional requirements that needed to be 
addressed after testing of the improvements. 

Financial statements were prepared for the 2016/17 
financial year and were provided to Provincial 
Treasury for review; there were no material findings 
identified through the review.

The revised financial statements close process 
controls are implemented and were used to prepare 
financial statements for 31 March 2017 year-end.

Ongoing.

4.2 That the Department provides the 
Committee with a progress report 
detailing the effectiveness of measures 
put in place to address weaknesses in 
predetermined objectives, within 30 
days after adoption and thereafter every 
quarter continuing up until the end of 
June 2017.

The measures put in place to address the 
weaknesses in the formulation of the pre-
determined objectives comprise the following:

First level review after management formulated 
the objectives of the 2016/17 APP, was done by 
the Monitoring and Evaluation Unit within the 
Department. They proposed amendments which 
were included in the document.

The second review of the objectives was performed 
by the Internal Audit team. Their recommendations 
were included in the final draft before it was 
submitted to the Accounting Officer and the MEC 
for signature.

Ongoing.

4.3 That the CEO ensures that transparent 
financial and performance management 
reporting systems are regularly 
maintained. This should be led and 
managed by staff with strong technical 
skills and experience and provide the 
committee with a progress report detailing 
the effectiveness of measures put in place 
in addressing matters related to annual 
financial statements within 30 days of 
adoption hereof and thereafter every 
quarter continuing up until end of June 
2017.

The revised financial statement close process 
controls are implemented the controls were utilised 
to prepare the financial statements for 2016/17 
year-end. There were no material findings in the 
review of the financial statements prepared for 
year-end as reviewed by Provincial Treasury.

Ongoing.
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Resolution 
No.

Subject Response by the Department Resolved (Yes/No)

4.4 That the CEO intensify performance and 
consequence management processes 
to eliminate findings on irregular 
expenditure and provides the committee 
with a progress report detailing the 
effectiveness of measure put in place to 
address challenges relating to irregular 
expenditure within 30 days of adoption 
hereof and thereafter every quarter 
continuing up until end of June 2017.

Adherence to revised standard operating 
procedures by officials within the entity is 
continually monitored.

Ongoing.

4.5 The MEC provide the committee  and R&T 
Portfolio Committee with a monthly report 
detailing its adherence and compliance 
to the requirements of all applicable 
legislation to ensure that effective 
measures are implemented to prevent 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure within 
30 days of adoption hereof and thereafter 
every quarter up until end of June 2017.

The traffic fines are redirected to the proxies that 
were provided by the departments when the traffic 
fines are received. This would result in reduction of 
the fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred by 
g-FleeT.

FIS roll out is planned to be on 1 April 2017, 
with the roll out the fruitless expenditure already 
incurred by departments and not reallocated will be 
billed out to the departments in April 2017.

Ongoing.

4.6 That the MEC intensify performance and 
consequence management processes to 
eliminate findings on non-compliance 
with key legislation and provides the 
committee with a progress report detailing 
the effectiveness of measures put in place 
to address challenges related to payment 
of service providers within 30 days of 
adoption hereof and thereafter every 
quarter continuing up until end of June 
2017.

Challenges that were initially experienced during 
implementation of SAP are being addressed.  The 
entity analysed reasons for the delays of payments 
within 30 days during the 2016/17 financial year.

Delays to submit the invoice to g-FleeT finance and 
approval on the system.

Supplier submitted vendor application late.

SAP implementation and Document Management 
Centre.

Ongoing.

4.7 That the MEC hold the CEO accountable 
for timely implementation of action plans 
and honouring commitments and provides 
the committee with a progress report 
detailing the effectiveness of measures 
put in place in addressing payment 
of service providers within 30 days of 
adoption hereof and thereafter every 
quarter up until end of June 2017.

Challenges that were initially experienced during 
implementation of SAP are being addressed.  The 
entity analysed reasons for the delays of payments 
within 30 days during the 2016/17 financial year.

Delays to submit the invoice to g-FleeT finance and 
approval on the system.

Supplier submitted vendor application late.

SAP implementation and Document Management 
Centre.

Ongoing.

4.8 That the MEC provide the Committee 
with a progress report detailing the 
effectiveness of measures put in place 
to address record keeping for contract 
management and monitor adequacy 
of internal controls in order to avoid 
recurrence of this finding within 30 days 
of adoption hereof and thereafter every 
quarter continuing up until end of June 
2017.

Adherence to revised standard operating 
procedures by officials within the entity is 
continually monitored.

Ongoing.

4.9 That the Department provides the 
committee with a progress report detailing 
the status of the investigations within 30 
days of adoption hereof and thereafter 
every quarter continuing up until end of 
June 2017.

Investigations around lost vehicles are on-going 
and have not yet concluded.

Ongoing.
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2.5.8 INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Internal Audit section from Gauteng Audit Services performed a review on g-FleeT processes. The audit indicated 
that the processes and related systems of internal control around the entity processes were not adequate and effective. It 
should, however, be noted that the results improved when compared to that of the previous year.

2.5.9 AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Audit Committee and Attendance

The Audit Committee consists of the external Members listed hereunder and is required to meet a minimum of at least 
two times per annum as per provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). In terms of the approved Terms 
of Reference (GPG Audit Committee Charter), five meetings were held during the current year, i.e. three meetings to 
consider the Quarterly Performance Reporting (financial and non-financial) and two meetings to review and discuss the 
Annual Financial Statements and the Auditor-General of South Africa’s (AGSA) Audit and Management Reports.

Non-Executive Members

Name of Member Number of Meetings attended

Janice Meissner   05

Masaccha Mbonambi 03

George Higgins 04

Executive Members

In terms of the GPG Audit Committee Charter, officials listed hereunder are obliged to attend meetings of the Audit 
Committee:

Compulsory Attendees Number of Meetings attended

Noxolo Maninjwa (Acting CEO) 03

Lebogang Jantjies (Acting Chief Financial Officer) 04

Lorraine Francois (Chief Audit Executive) 04  

The Members of the Audit Committee met with the Senior Management of the Entity, Auditor-General and Internal 
Audit, collectively to address risks and challenges facing the Entity. A number of in-committee meetings were held to 
address control weaknesses and deviations within the Entity.

Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38(1)(a) of the PFMA and 
Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference 
as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this Charter and has discharged all its 
responsibilities as contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal control and Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Governance

The Audit Committee has observed that the overall control environment of the Entity has continued to improve during the 
year under review.  Some deficiencies in the system of internal control and deviations were reported in the Internal Audit 
reports. Overall, although the weaknesses within the finance control environment were improved and maintained, the 
Audit Committee is not satisfied that the non-financial control within the operational environment are being addressed. 
Most of the Internal Audit work performed concluded on inadequate and ineffective system of internal controls. The 
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Audit Committee has raised its concern over the sustainability of leadership with regards to vacancies in key management 
positions. The Audit Committee however, is also not satisfied that it received adequate information and assurance from 
Management to stabilise the control environment of the Entity.

The Audit Committee also reviewed progress with respect to the ICT Governance in line with the ICT Framework issued by 
the Department of Public Services and Administration. The overall information systems environment improved from the 
prior year. There are still some weaknesses to be addressed including the implementation of the Disaster Recovery Plan 
and the capacitation of the Information Technology structure. This continues to be a high risk for the Entity which has to 
be mitigated on an ongoing basis.

Internal Audit 

The Accounting Officer is obliged, in terms of the PFMA, to ensure that the entity has a system of Internal Audit under 
the control and direction of the Audit Committee. In the case of the Gauteng Provincial Government (GPG), the Internal 
Audit Function is shared amongst Departments in the Province. 

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit plan represents a clear alignment with the key risks, has adequate 
information systems coverage and a good balance across the different categories of audits, i.e. risk-based, mandatory, 
performance, computer and follow-up audits. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit has discharged its 
functions and responsibilities during the year under review.

The Audit Committee was aware of the difficult relationship between the Internal Audit and Management but has noted 
improvement in the communication between the Executive Management, the AGSA and the Internal Audit Function.

The Audit Committee wishes to stress that in order for the Internal Audit Function to operate at optimal level as expected 
by the Audit Committee, the shortage in human resources and skills should be addressed. 

Risk Management 

Progress on the departmental risk management was reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. However, 
the Audit Committee was required to intervene with the Accounting Officer to ensure that the actual management of 
the risks (strategic, financial and operational) were receiving the attention the risk management function deserves.  The 
Audit Committee is satisfied that proactive steps are now being taken to manage the risks of the Entity and a substantial 
improvements are required. It is emphasised that Management should take full responsibility for the entire Enterprise Risk 
Management Process and continue to enhance the performance of the Entity. It is the request of the Audit Committee 
for the Entity to substantially improve in the maturity of risk management.

Forensic Investigations 

Investigations into alleged financial irregularities, financial misconduct and fraud were completed during the year under 
review. Furthermore, certain investigations are still in progress. Various measures were recommended, including taking 
action against the identified officials and this was in the process of finalisation. The recommendations are at various 
stages of implementation. 

The quality of quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act 

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of financial and non-financial quarterly reports prepared 
and submitted by the Accounting Officer of the Department during the year under review and confirms that the reports 
were in compliance with the statutory reporting framework.
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Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements

The Audit Committee is comfortable that the Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in terms of the South 
African standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the PFMA. The Audit 
Committee has also:

• Discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements to be included in the Annual Report, with the AGSA and the 
Accounting Officer;

• Reviewed the Audit Report of the AGSA;

• Reviewed the AGSA’s Management Report and Management’s response thereto; and

• Reviewed the Entity’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions. 

Auditor-General’s report

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts the conclusion and audit opinion of the AGSA on the Annual Financial 
Statements. The Committee is of the view that the audited financial statements be accepted and read together with the 
report of the AGSA. The Audit Committee confirms that it has been actively involved throughout the audit process and 
has been thoroughly appraised of the issues highlighted in the audit report.

The Audit Committee also notes the key issues identified by the AGSA in the management letter and has assessed 
Management’s action to mitigate any financial or performance reporting risks associated with these matters. The 
Committee is comfortable that given the implementation of effective and efficient controls, these matters should be 
adequately dealt with in future periods.

The external audit function performed by the AGSA is independent of the Entity. The Audit Committee has met with the 
AGSA to ensure that there are no unresolved issues and acknowledges the diligence and cooperation of the AGSA’s team.

One-on-One Meeting with the Accounting Officer

The Audit Committee has met with the Accounting Officer and Chief Executive Officer for the Entity to address unresolved 
issues.

One-on-One Meetings with the Executive Authority

The Audit Committee has met with the Executive Authority for the Entity to apprise the MEC on the performance of  
the Entity.

________________________
Ms. Janice Meissner
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
31 July 2017



PART D
2.6 Human Resource Management
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2.6.1 INTRODUCTION 

The five-year strategic Human Resources (HR) Plan was approved during the 2014/2015 financial year. With the strategic 
plan now in place, the entity is now poised for significant improvements in people management practices going forward. 
To this end, g-FleeT has taken tentative steps to introduce competency matrices for the entity, beginning with the finance 
competency matrix.

The entity was previously characterised by a high vacancy rate with the number of contract workers exceeding those 
of permanent workers. With the absorption of the contract workers up to level seven, the number has been reduced; 
g-FleeT management has seven contract employees between levels eight and twelve. The entity has not filled its vacancies 
due to the moratorium that was put in place in November 2016. 

In addition, the entity has under gone an overhaul of its service delivery model which has required it to relook at its 
structure, in order for it to be responsive to the needs of its customers. This process has also contributed to the delay in 
filling of posts. Specialised critical posts need to be made a priority and filled parallel to the finalisation of the structure 
by the DPSA.

Training and development has also been undertaken to address the skills shortages and upskilling of those identified 
employees. The entity has also engaged with the relevant Skills Education Training Authorities (SETA’s) and other government 
organisations that offer relevant training and courses that would assist our staff. A good number of employees have been 
enrolled for supervisory development programme. 

In relation to the PMDS, the entity has achieved the highest compliance rate (92%) this last financial year. This was 
largely due to the efforts put in by the HR team in ensuring that employees have a full understanding of how the PDMS 
contributes to the entitys’ successes and failure in conjunction with the employees’ growth and development as well. The 
HR unit is starting to respond to the needs of the entity and its staff at large.

The entity has now taken the driver’s seat in managing its own wellness programmes which were previously administered 
by the Department of Roads and Transport. Moving forward, wellness programmes will also be used to address the items 
highlighted in the staff climate survey which was conducted in 2015/16. Taking care of our staff in a holistic manner is 
fast becoming a strategic focus of the entity.

The culture of the entity is slowly but surely changing in a positive direction as HR focus in addressing issues that concern 
the staff, but also items that help grow and build moral within the entity. This in-turn has been seen in the largely 
improved positive results of our Client Satisfaction Survey.   

2.6.2 HR OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

PERSONNEL-RELATED EXPENDITURE

The following tables provide a summary of the final audited personnel related expenditure by programme and salary 
bands. In particular, it provides an indication of the following:

• Amount spent on personnel. 

• Amount spent on salaries, overtime, homeowner’s allowances and medical aid. 
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Table 2.6.2.1 Personnel expenditure by programme for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Programme
Total 

expenditure 
(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
expenditure

(R’000)

Professional and 
special services 

expenditure 
(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

as a % of total 
expenditure

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee 

(R’000)

Office of the CEO 2,674 2,583 0 0 97% 861 

Office of the COO 1,398 1,373 0 0 98% 687 

Office of the CFO 15,393 240 0 0 2% 240 

Financial services 16,517 11,653   71% 334 

Corporate Services 28,214 9,142 405 0 32% 258 

Marketing and 
Communication 8,475 8,020 0 0 95% 372 

Maintenance 
Services 117,081 9,782 0 0 8% 267 

Transport Support 
Services 190,958 10,270 0 0 5% 310 

Permanent Service 221,749 5,848 0 0 3% 366 

VIP/Pool Services 16,542 16,172 0 0 98% 258 

Total 619,001 75,083 405 0 12% 305 

Table 2.6.2.2 Personnel costs by salary band for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Salary band
Personnel expenditure 

(R’000)
% of total personnel 

cost
Number of employees

Average personnel cost 
per employee (R’000)

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 203 0.2% 5 41

Skilled (levels 3-5) 21 132 27% 120 176

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8) 26 802 35% 73 92

Highly skilled supervision 
(levels 9-12) 20 471 27% 36 44

Senior and top 
management (levels 13-16) 8 511 11% 7 10

Total 77 120 100% 241 363



Gauteng Provincial Government | Department of Roads and Transport | Annual Report | 2016/2017

| 280 |

Table 2.6.2.3 Salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowances and medical aid by programme for the period  
01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Programme

Salaries Overtime  Home owners’ allowance  Medical aid

Amount 
(R’000

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as a % 
of personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical aid 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Office of the 
CEO 2,583 3%  0% 14 1% 22 1%

Office of the 
COO 1373 2%  0% 0 0% 39 3%

Office of the 
CFO 240 0%  0% 0 0% 33 14%

Financial 
Management 11,653 16%  0% 261 2% 363 3%

Corporate 
Services 9,142 12% 2,057 23% 235 3% 418 5%

Marketing and 
Communication 8,020 11%  0% 196 2% 202 3%

Maintenance 
Services 9,782 13%  0% 333 3% 495 5%

Transport 
Support Services 10,270 14%  0% 322 3% 575 6%

Permanent 
Service 5,848 8%  0% 214 4% 311 5%

VIP/Pool 
Services 16,172 22%  0% 690 4% 648 4%

Total 75,083 100% 2,057 3% 2,265 3% 3,106 4%

Table 2.6.2.4 Salaries, overtime, home owners’ allowances and medical aid by salary band for the period  
01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Salary bands

Salaries Overtime Home owners allowance Medical aid

Amount 
(R’000

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as a % 
of personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical 
aid as 
a % of 

personnel 
costs 

Skilled (levels 1-2)  267 0.4% 14 5% 29 11% 14 5%

Skilled (levels 3-5)  22,395 30% 1142 5% 992 4% 1177 5%

Highly skilled 
production (levels 
6-8)

26,587 35% 706 3% 729 3% 1376 5%

Highly skilled 
supervision (levels 
9-12)

19,470 26% 195 1% 371 2% 473 2%

Senior 
management 
(level 13-16)

6,364 8% 0 0% 144 2% 66 1%

Total 75,083 100% 2,057 3% 2,265 3% 3,106 4%
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EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

The tables in this section summarise the position of the entity with regards to employment and vacancies. 

The following tables summarise the number of posts in the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy rate, 
and whether there are any employees that are additional to the establishment. 

This information is presented in terms of three key variables:

• Programme.

• Salary band.

• Critical occupations.

Departments have identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. In terms of current regulations, it is possible 
to create a post on the establishment that can be occupied by more than one employee. Therefore, the vacancy rate 
reflects the percentage of posts that are not filled. 

Table 2.6.2.5 Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2017

Programme
Number of posts on 

approved establishment
Number of posts filled Vacancy rate

Number of employees 
additional to the 

establishment

SMS (levels 13-16) 8 7 0.3% 0

Levels 11-12 18 14 1% 0

Levels 7-10 126 88 12% 0

Levels 1-6 180 125 17% 0

Total  332 234 30% 0

Table 2.6.2.6 Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2017

Salary band
Number of posts on 

approved establishment
Number of posts filled Vacancy rate

Number of employees 
additional to the 

establishment

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 14 5 3% -

Skilled (levels 3-5) 149 114 11% 0

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8) 111 73 12% 0

Highly skilled supervision 
(levels 9-12) 50

35 5% 0

Senior management (levels 
13-16) 8

7 0.3% 0

Total 332 234 30% 0



Gauteng Provincial Government | Department of Roads and Transport | Annual Report | 2016/2017

| 282 |

FILLING OF SMS POSTS

Table 2.6.2.7 SMS post information as on 31 March 2017

SMS level
Total number of 

funded SMS posts
Total number of 
SMS posts filled

% of SMS posts 
filled

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant

% of SMS posts 
vacant

Salary level 16 0 0 0 0 0

Salary level 15 1 1 100% 0 0%

Salary level 14 1 1 100% 0 0%

Salary level 13 6 5 98% 1 2%

Total 8 7 98% 1 2%

Table 2.6.2.8 Advertising and filing of SMS post for the period 01 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

SMS level
Total number of 

funded SMS posts
Total number of 
SMS posts filled

% of SMS posts 
filled

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant

% of SMS posts 
vacant

Director-General  
(DG)/HoD 0 0 0 0 0

Salary level 16 0 0 0 0 0

Salary level 15 1 1 100% 0 0%

Salary level 14 1 1 100% 0 50%

Salary level 13 6 5 98% 1 2%

Total 8 7 98% 1 2%

Table 2.6.2.9 Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS – Advertised within  
6 months and filled within 12 months after becoming vacant for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months

The request for the advertisements of vacant posts was not approved during the financial year 2016/17, in order to accommodate officials in the 
pool of the Department.

The organisational structure was in the process of being revised and the moratorium on vacant posts was instituted on 4 November 2016.

The Director: Fleet Maintenance post is still vacant due to ongoing moratorium.

Reasons for vacancies not filled within six months

The moratorium was instituted on 4 November 2016. The organisational structure is in the process of being revised.

Table 2.6.2.10 Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for filling SMS posts 
within 12 months for the period 01 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months

None.

Reasons for vacancies not filled within six months

Moratorium which was instituted on 4 November 2016.
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JOB EVALUATION

Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in an organisation. 
In terms of the regulations, all vacancies on salary level 9 and higher must be evaluated before they are filled. The 
following table summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year under review. The table also provides 
statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded. 

Table 2.6.2.11 Job evaluation by salary band for the period 01 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 

Salary band

Number of 
posts on 
approved 

establishment

Number of 
jobs evaluated

% of posts 
evaluated by 
salary bands

Posts upgraded Posts downgraded

Number
% of  posts 
evaluated

Number
% of  posts 
evaluated

Lower skilled 
(levels1-2) 14 0

0%

Skilled (levels 
3-5) 149 0

0%

Highly skilled 
production 
(levels 6-8) 111 0

0%

Highly skilled 
supervision
(levels 9-12) 50 0

0%

SMS
Band A 8 0 0%

SMS
Band B -

-

SMS
Band C

- -

SMS
Band D

- -

Total 332 0 0%

The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their post 
being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of posts upgraded since not all employees are 
automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the posts upgraded could be vacant.

Table 2.6.2.12 Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded for 
the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with a disability

The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration bands exceeded the grade determined by job 
evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.
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Table 2.6.2.13  Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation by   occupation 
for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Occupation Number of employees Job evaluation level Remuneration level Reason for deviation

- 0 - - -

- 0 - - -

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation -

Percentage of total employed -

The following table summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.

Table 2.6.2.14 Profile of employees who have salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation 
for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with a 
disability 0 0 0 0 0

Total number of employees whose remuneration exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation in 2016/17 0

EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates provide an indication 
of trends in the employment profile of the department. The following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by 
salary band and critical occupations. 

Table 2.6.2.15 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 

Salary band
Number of employees at 

beginning of period-
April 2016

Appointments and 
transfers into the 

Department

Terminations and 
transfers out of the 

Department 
Turnover rate

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 5 0 0 0%

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 118 0 7 3%

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8) 73 0 3 1%

Highly skilled supervision 
(levels 9-12) 35

2
0 1%

SMS
Band A 4

1
1 0.3%

SMS
Band B

1 0 0
0%

SMS Band C 1 0 0 0%

SMS Band D 0 0 0 0

Total 237 3 11 5.3%
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Table 2.6.2.16 Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Critical occcupation

Number of 
employees at 
beginning of 
period-April 

2016

Appointments 
and transfers 

into the 
Department

Terminations and 
transfers out of 
the Department 

Turnover rate

Administrative related, permanent - 14 0 0 0

All artisans in the building metal machinery etc., permanent 9 0 0 0

Building and other property caretakers, permanent 3 0 0 0

Bus and heavy vehicle drivers, permanent 1 0 0 0

Cleaners in offices workshops hospitals etc., permanent 6 0 0 0

Client information clerks (switchboard/receptionist, 
information clerks), permanent

0
0 0 0

Computer programmers, permanent 1 0 0 0

Finance and economics related, permanent 3 0 0 0

Financial and related professionals, permanent 2 0 0 0

Financial clerks and credit controllers, permanent 3 0 0 0

HoD/CEO, permanent 1 0 0 0

Human resources, organisational development and related 
professionals, permanent 4 0 0 0

Human resources clerks, permanent 1 0 0 0

Human resources related, permanent 9 0 0 0

Information technology related, permanent 1 0 0 0

Library mail and related clerks, permanent 3 0 0 0

Light vehicle drivers, permanent 9 0 0 0

Material-recording and transport clerks, permanent 1 0 0 0

Messengers porters and deliverers, permanent 3 0 0 0

Motor vehicle drivers, permanent 1 0 0 0

Other administration and related clerks and organisers, 
permanent 55 0 0 0

Other administrative policy and related officers, permanent 12 0 0 0

Other occupations, permanent 1 0 0 0

Secretaries and other keyboard operating clerks, permanent 6 0 0 0

Senior managers, permanent 6 0 0 0

Trade labourers, permanent 16 0 0 0

Total 172 0 0 0

Notes
The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table.

The table below identifies the major reasons some staff left the Department. 
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Table 2.6.2.17 Reasons why staff left the Department for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Termination type  Number % of total resignations

Death 1 0.3%

Resignation 7 3%

Expiry of contract - -

Dismissal – operational changes -

Dismissal – misconduct -

Dismissal – inefficiency - -

Discharged due to ill-health -

Retirement 3 1%

Transfer to other Public Service departments - -

Other -

Total 11 4.3%

Total number of employees who left  
as a % of total employment

11 4.3%

Table 2.6.2.18 Promotions by critical occupation for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Occupation
Employees 1 April 

2015
Promotions to 

another salary level

Salary level 
promotions as a % 
of employees by 

occupation

Progressions to 
another notch 

within a salary level

Notch progression 
as a % of 

employees by 
occupation

Clerks 0 0 0 0 0

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals 

0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Table 2.6.2.19 Promotions by salary band for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Salary band
Employees 1 April 

2016
Promotions to 

another salary level

Salary bands 
promotions as a % 
of employees by 

salary level

Progressions to 
another notch 

within a salary level

Notch progression 
as a % of

employees by salary 
bands

Lower skilled (levels 
1-2) 5 0 0 0 0

Skilled (levels 3-5) 116 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 
production (levels 6-8) 73 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 
supervision (levels 
9-12) 34 0 0 0 0

Senior management 
(levels 13-16) 6 0 0 0 0

Total 234 0 0 1 0.3
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EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 

Table 2.6.2.20 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following 
occupational categories as at 31 March 2017

Occupational category
Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior officials and managers 3 1 2 6

Professionals 18 1 10 2 1 2 34

Technicians and associate professionals 24 1 1 4 36 3 1 5 75

Clerks 74 6 33 1 1 4 119

Service and sales workers

Skilled agriculture and fishery workers

Craft and related trades workers

Plant and machine operators and 
assemblers

Elementary occupations

Total 119 2 1 10 80 8 3 11 234

Employees with disabilities 2 1 1 4

Table 2.6.2.21 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following 
occupational bands as at 31 March 2017

Occupational band
Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top management

Senior management 3 1 2 6

Professionally qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management

18 1 10 2 1 2 34

Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and superintendents

24 1 1 4 36 3 1 5 75

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision 
making

74 6 33 1 1 4 119

Unskilled and defined decision making

Total 119 2 1 10 80 8 3 11 234
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Table 2.6.2.22 Recruitment for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 

Occupational band
Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top management - - - - - - - - -

Senior management - - - - - - - - -

Professionally qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management

3 1 - - 2 - - - 6

Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and superintendents

14 1 - - 16 - - 1 32

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision 
making

6 13 1 20

Unskilled and defined decision making 11 5 16

Total 34 2 - - 36 - - 2 74

Employees with disabilities 1 - - - - - - - 1

Table 2.6.2.23 Promotions for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Occupational band
Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top management

Senior management

Professionally qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management

0 0 0 0

Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and superintendents

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision 
making

Unskilled and defined decision making

Total 0 0 0 0

Employees with disabilities
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Table 2.6.2.24 Terminations for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Occupational band
Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Top management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Professionally qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3

Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and superintendents 1 0 0 1 2 0 0 1 4

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision 
making 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Contract (top management), permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (senior management), 
permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (professionally qualified), 
permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 4 0 0 1 4 0 0 1 10

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 2.6.2.25 Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Disciplinary action
Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Suspension without pay 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1

Dismissal 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Table 2.6.2.26 Skills development for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017  

Occupational category
Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total

Legislators, senior officials and managers 3 1 2 6

Professionals 18 1 10 2 1 2 34

Technicians and associate professionals 24 1 1 4 36 3 1 5 75

Clerks 74 6 33 1 1 4 119

Service and sales workers

Skilled agriculture and fishery workers

Craft and related trades workers

Plant and machine operators and 
assemblers

Elementary occupations

Total 119 2 1 10 80 8 3 11 234

Employees with disabilities 2 1 1 4
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SIGNING OF PERFORMANCE AGREEMENTS BY SMS MEMBERS

Table 2.6.2.27 Signing of performance agreements by SMS members as at 31 March 2017

SMS level
Total number of 

funded SMS posts
Total number of SMS 

members
Total number of signed 

performance agreements

Signed performance 
agreements as % of total 
number of SMS members

DG/HoD - - - -

Salary level 16 - - - -

Salary level 15 1 1 1 100%

Salary level 14 1 1 1 100%

Salary level 13 6 5 5 100%

Total 8 7 7 100%

Table 2.6.2.28 Reasons for not having concluded performance agreements for all SMS members  
as at 31 March 2017

Reasons

None

Table 2.6.2.29 Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded performance 
agreements as at 31 March 2017

Reasons

None

PERFORMANCE REWARDS

Table 2.6.2.30 Performance rewards by race, gender and disability for the period 01 April 2016 and  
31 March 2017

Race and gender
Beneficiary profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
group

Cost (R’000)
Average cost per 

employee

African 110 198 130.33 6484.25 12025.98

Male 69 116 69.62 3,741.51 5,352.66

Female 41 79 60.71 2,742.74 6,673.32

Asian 4 4 129.17 119.25 18624.28

Male 1 1 62.50 49.58 9,916.06

Female 3 3 66.67 69.67 8,708.22

Coloured 10 11 110.16 147.96 14067.42

Male 2 2 64.71 80.16 7,287.44

Female 8 9 45.45 67.80 6,779.98

White 21 21 143.14 758.44 16003.24

Male 10 10 74.29 448.77 8,630.24

Female 11 11 68.85 309.67 7,373.00

Total 145 234 66.21 7,548.85 6,068.21

Employees with disabilities 6 8 75.00 38.96 6,493.82
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To encourage good performance, the Department has granted the following performance rewards during the year under 
review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, disability, salary bands and critical occupations.

Table 2.6.2.31 Performance rewards by salary band for personnel below SMS, for the period  
01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

 Salary band

Beneficiary profile Cost Total cost as 
a % of the 

total personnel 
expenditure

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
salary bands

Total cost 
(R’000)

Average cost per 
employee

Lower skilled 
(levels 1-2) 9 5 44.02 277.61 3,017.55 -

Skilled (levels 3-5) 58 114 75.26 2,611.50 4,471.74 -

Highly skilled 
production (levels 
6-8)

43 73 71.55 3,203.63 7,450.31 -

Highly skilled 
supervision (levels 
9-12)

12 35 56.16 1,237.51 10,061.04 -

Total 122 227 175.73 7330.25 25000.64 -

Table 2.6.2.32 Performance rewards by critical occupation for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Critical 
occupation

Beneficiary profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within occupation
Total cost 

(R’000)
Average cost per 

employee

Lower skilled 
(levels 1-2) 9 5 44.02 277.61 3,017.55

Skilled (level 3-5) 58 114 75.26 2,611.50 4,471.74

Highly skilled 
production (levels 
6-8)

43 73 71.55 3,203.63 7,450.31

Highly skilled 
supervision (levels 
9-12)

12 35 56.16 1,237.51 10,061.04

Total 122 227 175.73 7330.25 25000.64

Notes
The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table.

Table 2.6.2.33 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for SMS for the period  
01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Salary band

Beneficiary profile Cost Total cost as 
a % of the 

total personnel 
expenditure

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
salary bands

Total cost 
(R’000)

Average cost per 
employee

Band A 0 1 19.05 140.22 17,527.90 40,573.34

Band B 0 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,651.33

Band C 2 5 28.57 39.66 19,830.32 9,362.73

Band D 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.58

Total 2 8 15.87 179.88 17,988.38 69,395.98
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FOREIGN WORKERS

The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the Department in terms of salary band and major 
occupation. 

Table 2.6.2.34 Foreign workers by salary band for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Salary band
01 April 2016 31 March 2017 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change

Lower skilled 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 
production (levels 
6-8)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 
supervision (levels 
9-12)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (levels 
9-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (levels 
13-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 2.6.2.35 Foreign workers by major occupation for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Major 
occupation

01 April 2016 31 March 2017 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0
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LEAVE UTILISATION 

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service. The 
following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated cost of the 
leave is also provided.

Table 2.6.2.36 Sick leave for the period 01 January 2016 to 31 December 2016 

Salary band Total days
% days with 

Medical 
certification

Number of 
employees using 

sick leave

% of total 
employees using 

sick leave

Average days 
per employee

Estimated cost 
(R’000)

Lower skills (levels 
1-2) 836 55.38 141 11.94 5.93 365.00

Skilled (levels 3-5) 3551 50.66 477 40.39 7.44 2345.00

Highly skilled 
production (levels 
6-8)

3134 48.92 398 33.7 7.87 3745.00

Highly skilled 
supervision (levels 
9 -12)

897 48.72 134 11.35 6.69 1898.00

Top and senior 
management 
(levels 13-16)

141 43.26 30 2.54 4.7 585.00

Total 8590 50.3 1181 100 7.27 8961.00

Table 2.6.2.37 Disability leave (temporary and permanent) for the period  
01 January 2016 to 31 December 2016

Salary band Total days 
% days with 

medical 
certification

Number of 
employees using 
disability leave

% of total 
employees using 
disability leave

Average days 
per employee

Estimated cost 
(R’000)

Lower skilled 
(levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled (levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 
production (levels 
6-8)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 
supervision (levels 
9-12)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior 
management 
(levels 13-16)

0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the 
PSCBC in 2000 requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of 
termination of service.
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Table 2.6.2.38 Annual leave for the period 01 January 2016 to 31 December 2016

Salary band Total days taken
Number of employees using 

annual leave
Average per employee

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 3674 17.01 216

Skilled (levels 3-5) 16923 20.29 834

Highly skilled production (levels 
6-8)

11858 18.08 656

Highly skilled supervision (levels 
9-12)

4418 18.8 235

Senior management (levels 13-16) 1099 17.17 64

Total 38092 18.9 2015

Table 2.6.2.39 Capped leave for the period 01 January 2016 to 31 December 2016

Salary band
Total days of capped 

leave taken
Number of employees 

using capped leave
Average number of days 

taken per employee

Average capped leave 
per employee as at 31 

March

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled (levels 3-5) 97.34 18 5.41 35.09

Highly skilled production 
(levels 6-8)

5
2

2.5
55.35

Highly skilled supervision 
(levels 9-12)

5
2

2.5
45.5

Senior management (levels 
13-16)

0
0

0
55.83

Total 107.34 22 4.88 41.6

The following table summarises payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

Table 2.6.2.40 Leave pay-outs for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Reason Total amount (R’000) Number of employees Average per employee (R’000)

Leave pay-out for 2016/17 due 
to non-utilisation of leave for the 
previous cycle

- - -

Capped leave pay-outs on 
termination of service for 2016/17

1759 59 29820

Current leave pay-out on 
termination of service for 2016/17 135 10 13542

Total 1895 69 27461
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HIV/AIDS & HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMMES

Table 2.6.2.41 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of contracting HIV & related diseases (if any) 
Key steps taken to 

reduce the risk 

None. None.

Table 2.6.2.42 Details of health promotion and HIV/AIDS programmes (tick the applicable boxes  
and provide the required information)

Question Yes No Details, if yes

1.  Has the Department designated a member of the SMS 
to implement the provisions contained in Part VI E of 
Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If 
so, provide her/his name and position.

X

2.  Does the Department have a dedicated unit or has 
it designated specific staff members to promote 
the health and well-being of your employees? If so, 
indicate the number of employees who are involved 
in this task and the annual budget that is available for 
this purpose.  

X

Two officials from the HR business unit are involved in 
the task and budget is available.

3.  Has the Department introduced an Employee 
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for your 
employees? If so, indicate the key elements/services of 
this programme. 

X

4.  Has the Department established (a) committee(s) as 
contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the 
Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please provide 
the names of the members of the committee and the 
stakeholder(s) that they represent.  

X

5.  Has the Department reviewed its employment policies 
and practices to ensure that these do not unfairly 
discriminate against employees on the basis of their 
HIV status? If so, list the employment policies/practices 
so reviewed.  

X

6.  Has the Department introduced measures to protect 
HIV-positive employees or those perceived to be 
HIV-positive from discrimination? If so, list the key 
elements of these measures. 

X

7.  Does the Department encourage its employees to 
undergo Voluntary Counselling and Testing (VCT)? If 
so, list the results that you have you achieved. 

X
TB screening and HIV VCT ongoing.

8.  Has the Department developed measures/indicators 
to monitor and evaluate the impact of its health 
promotion programme? If so, list these measures/
indicators.

X

Through distribution of condoms and the facilitation of 
wellness awareness events.
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LABOUR RELATIONS

Table 2.6.2.43 Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Subject matter Date

- -

- -

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the Department for the year 
under review.

Table 2.6.2.44 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total

Correctional counselling - 0%

Verbal warning - 0%

Written warning 5 2%

Final written warning - 0%

Suspended without pay 1 0.4%

Fine - 0%

Demotion 1 0.4%

Dismissal 1 0.4%

Not guilty - 0%

Case withdrawn - 0%

Total 8 3%

Table 2.6.2.45 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period  
01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Type of misconduct (based on annexure A) Number % of total

Abscondment from work 1 0.4%

Total 1 0.4%

Table 2.6.2.46 Grievances logged for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Grievances Number % of Total

Number of grievances resolved 2 1%

Number of grievances not resolved 3 1%

Total of grievances not lodged 5 2%
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Table 2.6.2.47 Disputes logged with councils for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Grievances Number % of Total

Number of disputes upheld 3 1%

Number of disputes dismissed - -

Total number of disputes lodged 3 1%

Table 2.6.2.48 Strike actions for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Total number of persons working days lost 0

Total costs working days lost 0

Amount (R’000) recovered as a result of no work, no pay 0

Table 2.6.2.49 Precautionary suspensions for the period 01 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Number of people suspended 0

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 0

Average number of days suspended 0

Cost (R’000) of suspension -
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

This section highlights the efforts of the Department with regard to skills development. 

Table 2.6.2.50 Training needs identified for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Occupational category Gender

Number of 
employees 

as at 1 April 
2016

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships

Skills 
programmes 

& other 
short 

courses 

Other forms 
of training

Total

Legislators, senior officials and managers
Female 3 - 1 - 1

Male 4 - 0 - 0

Professionals
Female 18 - 0 - 0

Male 16 - 1 - 1

Technicians and associate professionals
Female 27 - 11 - 11

Male 47 - 8 - 8

Clerks 
Female 80 - 16 - 16

Male 39 - 14 - 14

Service and sales workers
Female - - - - -

Male - - - - -

Skilled agriculture and fishery workers
Female - - - - -

Male - - - - -

Craft and related trades workers
Female - - - - -

Male - - - - -

Plant and machine operators and assemblers
Female - - - - -

Male - - - - -

Elementary occupations
Female - - - - -

Male - - - - -

Sub-total
- - - - -

Male - - - - -

Total 234 - 51 - 51
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Table 2.6.2.51 Training provided for the period for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Occupational category Gender

Number of 
employees 

as at 1 April 
2016

Training provided within the reporting period

Learnerships

Skills 
programmes 

& other 
short 

courses 

Other forms 
of training

Total

Legislators, senior officials and managers
Female 3 - 1 - 1

Male 4 - 0 - 0

Professionals
Female 18 - 0 - 0

Male 16 - 1 - 1

Technicians and associate professionals
Female 27 - 11 - 11

Male 47 - 8 - 8

Clerks 
Female 80 - 16 - 16

Male 39 - 14 - 14

Service and sales workers
Female - - - - -

Male - - - - -

Skilled agriculture and fishery workers
Female - - - - -

Male - - - - -

Craft and related trades workers
Female - - - - -

Male - - - - -

Plant and machine operators and assemblers
Female - - - - -

Male - - - - -

Elementary occupations
Female - - - - -

Male - - - - -

Sub-total
Female - - - - -

Male - - - - -

Total 234 - 51 - 51

INJURIES ON DUTY

The following tables provide basic information for injuries on duty.

Table 2.6.2.52 Injuries on duty for the period 01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

Required basic medical attention only 1 0.4%

Temporary total disablement - -

Permanent disablement - -

Fatal - -

Total 1 0.4%
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UTILISATION OF CONSULTANTS

Table 2.6.2.53 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period  
01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Project title
Total number of consultants 

that worked on project
Duration (work days) Contract value in Rand

Ernst & Young 11 12 months 10 545 360

Table 2.6.2.54 Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of HDIs for the period  
01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Project title
Percentage ownership by  

HDI groups
Percentage management by 

HDI groups

Number of consultants from 
HDI groups that work  

on the project

- - - -

- - - -

Table 2.6.2.55 Report on consultant appointments using donor funds for the period 01 April 2016 and  
31 March 2017

Project title
Total number of consultants 

that worked on project
Duration (work days)

Donor and contract value  
in Rand

- - - -

- - - -

Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total duration (work days) Total contract value in Rand

- - - -

- - - -

Table 2.6.2.56 Analysis of consultant appointments using donor funds, in terms of HDIs for the period  
01 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Project title
Percentage ownership by  

HDI groups
Percentage management by 

HDI groups

Number of consultants from 
HDI groups that work on the 

project

- - - -

- - - -
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SEVERANCE PACKAGES

Table 2.6.2.57 Granting of employee-initiated severance packages for the period 01 April 2016 and  
31 March 2017

Salary band
Number of applications 

received
Number of applications 
referred to the MPSA

Number of applications 
supported by MPSA

Number of packages 
approved by 
Department

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) - - - -

Skilled (levels 3-5) - - - -

Highly-skilled production 
(levels 6-8)

- - - -

Highly-skilled supervision 
(levels 9-12)

- - - -

Senior management (levels 
13-16)

- - - -

Total - - - -



PART E
2.7 Financial Information
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2.7.1 REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL  

This is the auditor’s report as issued by AGSA.

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON 
G-FLEET MANAGEMENT

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1. I have audited the financial statements of the g-FleeT Management set out on pages 309 to 342, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in 
net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the g-FleeT 
Management as at 31 March 2017, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and 
the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). 

Basis for opinion

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of my report. 

4. I am independent of the department in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit 
in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA 
code.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matters

6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

7. As disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2016 have been restated 
as a result of errors in the financial statements of the entity at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2017.

Responsibilities of the party responsible for the financial statements

8. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA and for such internal control as the accounting officer 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

9. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the g-FleeT Management’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention either to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or 
there is no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

11. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to the 
auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope

12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice 
issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance information 
against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report. I performed 
procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

13. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved performance 
planning documents of the entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance 
indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions 
relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included as part 
of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria 
developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the 
following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the entity for the year ended 31 
March 2017:

Programmes Pages in the annual performance report

Programme 1 – Operational management services 262 – 264

Programme 2 – Corporate and financial management 264 – 267

15. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly presented and 
whether performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further 
procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the 
reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

16. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected programmes are as follows:

Programme 1– Operational Management Services

Percentage of vehicles compliant to scheduled maintenance

17. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of 89,75% of vehicles 
compliant with scheduled maintenance. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work. I was unable 
to confirm the reported achievement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 
adjustments were required to the reported achievement of 89,75%.
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Programme 2– Corporate and Financial Management

Percentage of maintenance spent on (automotive) township businesses

18. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of 2% of maintenance 
spent on (automotive) township businesses. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work. I was unable 
to confirm the reported achievement by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 
adjustments were required to the reported achievement of 2%.

Other matter

19. I draw attention to the matter below. 

Achievement of planned targets

20. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 262 to 267 for information on the achievement of planned targets 
for the year and explanations provided for the under/overachievement of a number of targets. This information should 
be considered in the context of the material findings on the reliability of the reported performance information in 
paragraphs 17 and 18 of this report.  

Report on audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

21. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material 
findings on the entity’s compliance with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings 
but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

22. The material findings in respect of the compliance criteria for the applicable subject matters are as follows:

Annual financial statements

23. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial 
reporting framework as required by section 40(1)(b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of current assets and 
revenue identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were subsequently corrected, resulting in the 
financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Expenditure management

24. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R17 114 000, as disclosed in note 28 
to the annual financial statements, as required by section 38(1)(c) (ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation (TR) 9.1.1. 
The majority of the irregular expenditure was caused by extension of expired contracts. 

25. Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R3 249 000, as disclosed in 
note 27 to the annual financial statements, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and TR 9.1.1. The majority 
of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure was caused by interest levied on overdue accounts.

26. Contractual obligations and money owed by the entity were not met and settled within 30 days, as required by 
section 38(1)(f) of the PFMA and TR 8.2.3.

Other information

27. The g-FleeT Management’s accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the annual report. The other information does not include the financial statements, the 
auditor’s report thereon and those selected programmes presented in the annual performance report that have been 
specifically reported on in the auditor’s report. 

28. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance 
with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.
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29. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected programmes presented 
in the annual performance report or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work I have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s 
report, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. I 
have nothing to report in this regard.

Internal control deficiencies

30. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information and 
compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The 
matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the 
annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report.

Leadership

31. The accounting officer did not exercise effective oversight of financial, performance reporting and compliance with 
certain legislation. The action plan that was developed to address external audit findings was not implemented 
effectively by management.

Financial and performance management

32. Senior management did not ensure that controls over reconciliations and daily and monthly processing of transactions 
relating to revenue are implemented effectively.

33. Management responsible for reporting on predetermined objectives did not have effective controls to ensure that 
performance reports were useful and supported by complete, relevant and accurate information.

34. Management did not adequately review and monitor compliance with applicable legislation.

Other reports

35. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could have, an impact on the 
matters reported in the entity’s financial statements, reported performance information, compliance with applicable 
legislation and other related matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or 
my findings on reported performance information or compliance with legislation.

36. Investigations into the unauthorised use of petrol cards and renting out of state vehicles were still in progress at the 
reporting date.

Johannesburg
31 July 2017
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2017 2016

Restated*

Note(s)  ‘000  ‘000

g-FleeT Management
Formerly Government Garage
Trading as g-FleeT Management
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2017

Assets

Current Assets

Inventories 3 13 503 8 530
Finance lease receivables 6 3 935 13 140
Receivables from exchange transactions 7 205 246 150 065
Prepayments 8 3 503 1 230
Other Receivables 760 -

Cash and cash equivalents 9 743 166 514 339

970 113 687 304

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1 236 853 1 194 979
Intangible assets 5 1 929 98
Finance lease receivables 6 11 604 12 203

Rental deposits 91 91

1 250 477 1 207 371

Total Assets 2 220 590 1 894 675

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 10 600 1 445
Payables from exchange transactions 12 85 014 60 181

Other Payables 13 10 779 6 680

96 393 68 306

Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation 10 15 048 14 711

Long-term leave accrual 11 2 790 2 898

17 838 17 609

Total Liabilities 114 231 85 915

Net Assets 2 106 359 1 808 760

Accumulated surplus 2 106 359 1 808 760

The accounting policies on pages 313 to 321 and the notes on pages 322 to 342 form an integral part of the  
financial statements.
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2017 2016

Restated*

Note(s)  ‘000  ‘000

g-FleeT Management
Formerly Government Garage
Trading as g-FleeT Management
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Statement of Financial Performance for the period ended 31 March 2017

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue from auction of vehicles 56 047 77 885
Revenue from leases 14 767 207 691 858
Realisation of property lease liability 17 1 200 1 200
Debt impairment reversal 15 13 612 4 901
Other Income 29 1 730 1 556

Interest received 16 37 497 28 091

Total revenue from exchange transactions 877 293 805 491

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue from conditional Grants - 8 548

Total revenue 877 293 814 039

Expenditure
Employee related costs 18 (75 349) (77 771)

Depreciation and amortisation (109 396) (95 194)
Finance costs 30 (2 814) (1 539)
Repairs and maintenance (107 406) (102 936)
Cost of sales (64 718) (107 547)

General expenses 19 (220 011) (205 464)

Total expenditure (579 694) (590 451)

Operating surplus 297 599 223 588
Surplus for the year 297 599 223 588

The accounting policies on pages 313 to 321 and the notes on pages 322 to 342 form an integral part of the financial statements.



Gauteng Provincial Government | Department of Roads and Transport | Annual Report | 2016/2017

| 311 |

Accumulated Total net

surplus assets

Note(s)  ‘000  ‘000

g-FleeT Management
Formerly Government Garage
Trading as g-FleeT Management
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Statement of Changes in Net Assets as at 31 March 2017

Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Correction of errors*

1 636 332
(51 160)

1 636 332
(51 160)

Balance at April 01, 2015 as restated*
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year as previously reported

1 585 172
235 358

1 585 172
235 358

Prior Period Errors (11 770) (11 770)

Surplus for the year 223 588 223 588

Total changes 223 588 223 588

Restated* Balance at April 01, 2016
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

1 808 760
297 599

1 808 760
297 599

Total changes 297 599 297 599

Balance at March 31, 2017 2 106 359 2 106 359

*See Note 2
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2017 2016

Restated*

Note(s)  ‘000  ‘000

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Revenue from leases 716 842 805 010

Revenue from conditional grants - 8 548

Interest income 31 657 17 907

Revenue from auction of vehicles 60 210 49 147

Income from transport fees 1 730 1 556

810 439 882 168

Payments

Employee costs (72 118) (75 554)

Operating Expenditure and repairs and maintenance (299 380) (279 276)

Finance costs (1 489) -

(372 987) (354 830)

Net cash flows from operating activities 20 437 452 527 338

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (216 368) (324 210)

Purchase of other intangible assets 5 (1 855) -

Capital receipts from finance lease receivables 5 657 4 520

Interest receipts on finance lease receivables 5 774 10 184

Net cash flows from investing activities (206 792) (309 506)

Cash flows from financing activities

Capital repayment of finance lease obligation (508) (5 095)

Interest repayment on finance lease obligations (1 325) (1 539)

Net cash flows from financing activities (1 833) (6 634)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 228 827 211 198

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 514 339 303 140

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 743 166 514 338

g-FleeT Management
Formerly Government Garage
Trading as g-FleeT Management
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 31 March 2017
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g-FleeT Management
Formerly Government Garage
Trading as g-FleeT Management
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Accounting Policies

1. BACKGROUND

g-FleeT is a provincial Trading Entity, which reports to the Accounting Officer of the Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport, its 
controlling entity. The mandate of the entity is to be the leading provider of fleet management services within government. The Entity 
is incorporated and operates in the Republic of South Africa.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), 
issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) in accordance with Section 55(2) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1, 1999 
(PFMA). These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these financial statements, 
are disclosed below. The Entity has not applied any transitional provisions during the current period.

1.1 PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These Financial Statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the Entity.

1.2 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

Management is not aware of any matters or circumstances arising since the end of the financial year that were otherwise not dealt 
with in the Financial Statements, which significantly affect the financial position of the Entity or the results of its operations. These 
Financial Statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the Entity will continue to operate as a going concern for at 
least the next 12 months.

1.3 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Estimates

The preparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and assumptions about future conditions.The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Management has made the following accounting estimates and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment testing

The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows 
of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future 
cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of tangible and intangible assets 
are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. They are significantly affected by a number of factors including trade 
values and retail values together with economic factors such as interest rates.

Impairment of Trade and other receivables

The Entity makes provision for doubtful debts relating to all long outstanding debts from customers. In determining the value of 
doubtful debts, the Entity estimates future expected cash flows arising from those receivables which, in its judgement, are impaired.
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g-FleeT Management
Formerly Government Garage
Trading as g-FleeT Management
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Accounting Policies

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its useful life taking into account residual values, where appropriate. Reassessments 
of useful lives and residual values are performed annually after considering factors such as the condition of the asset, maintenance 
programmes, relevant market information and manner of recovery. In re-assessing residual values, the Entity considers the remaining 
life of the asset and its projected disposal value.

1.3 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED) 

Significant judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies of the Entity, management has made the following judgements which have a 
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of Trade and other receivables

The Entity makes provision for doubtful debts relating to all long outstanding debts from customers. In determining whether trade 
and other receivables are impaired, the Entity makes judgements as to whether there is objective evidence of impairment as a result 
of one or more loss event.

Classification of leases

The Entity has entered into lease agreements acting as both a lessor and lessee. The Entity uses judgement to determine, based on 
the evaluation of the terms and conditions of lease agreements, the appropriate treatment of the leases as either finance leases or 
operating leases.

Contingent liabilities

The existence of the obligation arising from legal claims against the Entity may only be determined through the outcome of legal 
proceedings. Management applies its judgement in determining whether a present obligation exists, therefore whether these claims 
should be recognised as provisions or disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Cash- and non-cash generating assets
Management has applied its judgement in determining that all the entity’s assets are cash generating. The entity is required to sus-
tain itself financially and all assets are employed in generating enough profit and cash flow to remain self-sustained.

1.4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production 
or supply of goods or services, rental to others or for administrative purposes are expected to be used during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Initial recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost on its acquisition date.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.



Gauteng Provincial Government | Department of Roads and Transport | Annual Report | 2016/2017

| 315 |

g-FleeT Management
Formerly Government Garage
Trading as g-FleeT Management
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Accounting Policies

Subsequent measurement
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure 
relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits or potential service delivery 
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Entity and the cost or fair value of the subsequent expenditure can be reliably 
measured.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual 
value. Depreciation commences when the asset is available for use. The residual value, useful life and depreciation method for each 
asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for 
as a change in accounting estimate.

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Machinery and tools Straight line 5 Years

Furniture and office equipment Straight line 5 - 25 years

Motor vehicles Straight line

•  Motor vehicles- passenger 7 years

•  Motor vehicles - commercial 11 years

Computer equipment Straight line 3 - 6 years

Leasehold improvements Straight line 20 - 30 years

Leased assets Straight line Lease term

Assets under construction Straight line Not depreciated

The residual value and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If the 
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless expectations 
differ from the previous estimate.

Assets capitalised under finance lease are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as property, plant and 
equipment controlled by the Entity or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease if there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity 
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits 
or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. The gains or losses arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised.
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Accounting Policies

1.5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance are classified and recognised as intangible assets.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets is the purchase price of the software purchased and any 
installation costs incurred.

Subsequent measurement
Intangible assets are shown at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a straight-
line basis over the intangible asset’s useful life, which is estimated to be between 2 - 9  years. Amortisation commences when the 
intangible asset is available for use. The estimated useful life, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of the 
financial year. Any adjustments arising from the annual review are applied prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised when the software is replaced or no longer used. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or 
retirement of an intangible asset is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A financial asset is any asset that is a cash or contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset. A financial liability is a 
contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another Entity.

The Entity has the following types of financial assets:
• Receivables from exchange transactions
• Cash and cash equivalents
• Finance lease receiveable

The Entity has the following types of financial liabilities:
• Payables from exchange transactions
• Finance lease obligation

The financial assets and liabilities of the Entity have all been classified as carried at amortised cost. 

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue 
of the financial instrument. Financial instruments are recognised when the Entity becomes a party to the contract.

Subsequent measurement

Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. Trade 
and other receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. Trade and other receivables are impaired where 
objective evidence of impairment exists, either individually or collectively for receivables that are not individually significant. If there is 
such evidence the recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss is recognised in accordance with GRAP 104.

If in the subsequent year the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases the previously recognised impairment 
provision will be increased or reduced.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and short-term deposits.
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Accounting Policies

1.7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

Derecognition

The Entity derecognises financial assets, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets when:

• the contractual right to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;

• the Entity transfers to another party substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or

• the Entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has transferred control 
of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party, 
and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition thus occurs when trade and other receivables are settled by the client, when cash balances are withdrawn from the 
bank or disbursed.

The Entity derecognises financial liabilities when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Derecognition 
thus occurs when the liability has been paid.

1.8 LEASES

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified 
as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Finance leases – lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at commencement of the lease, and measured at the 
amount of Entity’s net investment in the leases.

The Entity recognises gains or losses arising from the sale in terms of the finance lease at inception of the lease. The gain or loss is 
determined be the difference between the net investment in the lease and the carrying value of the vehicle. The gain or loss is included 
in surplus or deficit.

During the lease term, finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the 
Entity’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. The accounting policy for impairment of trade and other receivables is also 
applied to impairment of the net investment in lease receivable.

The accounting policy for derecognition of trade and other receivables is also applied to derecognition of the net investment in lease 
receivable. At the end of the lease term, the Entity recognises the unguaranteed residual value of the leased vehicle as part of property 
plant and equipment. If at the end of the lease term the lessee is still in possession of the leased vehicle, the lease is then accounted 
for as month-to-month lease contract.

Finance leases – lessee

Where the Entity enters into a finance lease, assets subject to finance lease agreements are capitalised at amounts equal to the fair 
value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the leased assets are accounted for in accordance with the stated accounting policies applicable to 
property, plant, equipment.

Corresponding liabilities are included in the Statement of Financial Position as finance lease liabilities. Lease payments are allocated 
between the lease finance cost and the capital repayment. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as 
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the outstanding liability. The accounting policy for derecognition of trade and other payables 
is also applied to derecognition of the finance lease payable.
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1.8 LEASES (CONTINUED)

Operating leases – lessor

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Entity does not include lease rental 
escalation clauses in the agreements. Revenue for operating leases is disclosed under revenue from exchange transactions in the 
Statement of Financial Performance. Costs, including depreciation, incurred in earning the lease revenue are recognised as an expense. 
Revenue related to fleet management services is recognised as the service is rendered.

1.9 INVENTORIES

Inventory comprises of items of property, plant and equipment that was previously held for rental. Inventories are recognised at the 
carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment when management decide to sell it.

Inventory write downs to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write down 
or the loss occurs. Reversals of write downs of inventories arising from an increase in net realisable are recognised as a reduction in the 
inventories recognised as an expense in the period the reversal occurs.

When inventories are sold the carrying amount is recognised as an expense in the period the related revenue is recognised.

1.10 IMPAIRMENT OF CASH-GENERATING ASSETS

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the Entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. The Entity 
assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that assets may be impaired. If any indication exist, or when annual 
impairment testing for assets is required, the Entity estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value used, is determined for the individual 
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In assessing value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, an 
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount. The reversal of the loss is recognised as part of the surplus or deficit in the Statement of Financial Position.

1.11 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an Entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits includes:

• wages, salaries and social security contributions;

• short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the absences is 
due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related employee 
service;

• bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which 
the employees render the related service; and

• non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars and cellphones) 
for current employees.
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1.11 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

When an employee has rendered service to the Entity during a reporting period, the Entity recognises the undiscounted amount of 
short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

–      as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted 
amount of the benefits, the Entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead 
to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

–      as an expense.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The Entity measures the expected cost of 
accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that 
has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the Entity has a present legal 
or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A 
present obligation exists when the Entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

1.12 COMMITMENTS

Commitments are disclosed for contracts that are entered into before the reporting date, but goods and services have not yet been 
received.

1.13 REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Conditional grants

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the Entity received revenue from another Entity without directly 
giving approximately equal value in exchange. The Entity receives conditional grants from a client in order to fund the purchase of 
vehicles for its officials. The grants received are recognised as cash and a corresponding liability. These grants are conditional upon the 
purchase of these vehicles and are recognised as revenue once the vehicles are purchased. The grants are measured at the fair value 
of the consideration received.

1.14 REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Revenue comprises the fair value received of the consideration received or  receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary 
course of the Entity’s activities.

The entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will 
flow to the Entity and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Entity’s activities as described below.

Revenue from auction of vehicles

All revenue from the sale of goods arises from the sale of vehicles previously leased to clients. All vehicles are sold via auction. Revenue 
from the sale of vehicles is recognised once the appointed auctioneers have provided evidence that the vehicle was sold on auction, 
provided the price at which the vehicle was auctioned. Revenue is measured at the price determined on auction.

Kilometre tariffs

Revenue from excess kilometres (kilometres in excess of the contracted kilometres) is charged as the excess kilometre are travelled.

Income from other services relating to leases

For lease arrangements, a portion of the payments made by clients are for providing services ancillary to the lease, such as administration 
and tracking the vehicle. These payments  are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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1.14 REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Transport services to government employees

The entity earns revenue from providing transport services to government employees from other Government Departments impacted 
by the relocation of Provincial Governments from Pretoria to Johannesburg after the 1994 elections. Transport service revenue is 
recognised once a trip is completed.

Interest

Interest from bank accounts is recognised using the effective interest method.

Interest on finance lease receivables is recognised from commencement of the lease until the finance lease is settled, based on the 
interest rate implicit in the lease as determined at inception of the lease.

Recoveries from clients

Toll, fuel,oil, accident and traffic fine revenue is a direct charge and recoverable from the clients. This revenue is recognised when the 
client incurs the cost.

1.15 FINANCE COSTS

Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds.

1.16 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

When the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements is amended, prior period comparative amounts are 
reclassified. Prior period comparative amounts have also been restated for all prior period errors. The nature, amounts and reasons for 
the restatements and reclassifications are disclosed.

1.17 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care 
been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance 
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is 
also disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

1.18 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention 
of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including –

(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as an expense or a assets in the period 
it occurred and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. Irregular 
expenditure is recorded in the notes to the Financial Statements when confirmed. The amount recorded is equal to the total value of 
the irregularity unless it is impracticable to determine in which case reasons therefore is provided in the note. Irregular expenditure is 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority or 
transferred to receivables for recovery.
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1.19 RELATED PARTIES

Related party relationships where control exists are disclosed regardless of whether any transactions took place between the parties 
during the reporting period.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.

1.20 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the date 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and 
• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).

All adjusting events are taken into account in the financial statements as the necessary adjustments are made to the financial statements. 
All non-adjusting event are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

1.21 STANDARDS OF GRAP APPROVED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Entities are required to apply the standards of GRAP where the Minister has determined the effective date. The following Standards 
of GRAP have been issued but are not yet required to be applied by the Entity as the Minister of Finance has not yet determined the 
effective date for them:

GRAP 109: Accounting by Principles and Agents

GRAP 109 outlines the principles in to be used by determining whether the entity is party to a principal/agent arrangement and 
whether it is the principal or agent in that arrangement. The Standard will require g-FleeT to consider all its relationships in light of the 
principles contained in the Standard and evaluate whether it accounts for transactions appropriately.

iGRAP 17 Service Concession Arrangements Where a Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset.

iGRAP 17 prescribes the treatment of grantors in a  service concession arrangement. g-FleeT is not a party to a service concession 
arrangement, therefore this Standard will not have an impact on the g-FleeT financial statements.

1.22 STANDARDS OF GRAP APPROVED BUT NOT REQUIRED TO BE APPLIED BY THE ENTITY

GRAP 105 Transfers of Functions Between Entities Under Common Control and GRAP 106 Transfers of Functions Between Entities Not 
Under Common Control

GRAP 105 and 106 prescribe the accounting treatment for a transfer of functions. g-FleeT does not anticipate that it will be a party 
to a transfer of functions in the near future, therefore these Standards will not have an impact on the g-FleeT financial statements.

GRAP 107 Mergers
GRAP 107 prescribes the accounting treatment for mergers. g-FleeT does not anticipate that it will be a party to a merger in the 
near future, therefore this Standard will not have an impact on the g-FleeT financial statements.

GRAP 18 Segment Reporting
GRAP 18 would require the Entity to identify different segments into which it is divided and disclose certain financial information 
for each identified segment. g-FleeT anticipates that once the Standard becomes effective, it will be required to make segment 
disclosures in addition to all the disclosures in the current financial statements. The Entity will apply GRAP 18 in the year in which it 
is required to, according to the effective date that will be announced by the Minister of Finance

GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables
GRAP 108 prescribes the accounting treatment of statutory receivables. g-FleeT does not have any statutory receivables, therefore 
this Standard will not have an impact on the g-FleeT financial statements
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2. Correction of error

The following prior period errors were identified during the year

Error 1: Assets held under finance lease arrangements

The finance lease payables and the related items of PPE contained errors including the incorrect depreciation 
charge for various assets, incorrect interest rates implicit in the lease and incorrect amortisation of 
lease payables. The impact of correcting the error is as follows:

Statement of Net assets

Increase in opening balance accumulated surplus (5 387)

Statement of Financial Position: Non-current liabilities

Decrease in non-current finance lease obligations 7 305

Statement of financial performance

Decrease in finance costs (2 070) 

Increase in general expenses 120

Decrease in depreciation (681)

(2 631)

Statement of Financial Position: Non-current assets

Increase in property, plant and equipment 624

Statement of Financial Position: Current liabilities

Decrease in current finance lease obligations 89

Error 2: Depreciation error on leasehold improvements
Leasehold improvements have a useful life of 20 - 30 years depending on the nature of the assets. During 
2015/16, all leasehold inprovements were depreciated using a useful life of 30 years. The impact of correcting 
the error is as follows:

Statement of financial performance

Increase in depreciation expense 687

Statement of financial position: Non-current assets

Decrease in property, plant and equipment (697)

Statement of financial position: Net assets

Decrease in opening balance accumulated surplus 10
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Error 3: Incorrect processing of property, plant and equipment adjustments

During 2015/16, work was performed in order to correct the fixed asset register, but some errors were made processing the journal 
entries for the corrections and in presenting the Property, plant and equipment note. The impact of correcting the error is as follows:

Statement of financial performance

Increase in vehicle expenses 292

Statement of financial position: Non-current assets

Decrease in property, plant and equipment  (292)

Error 4: Incorrect processing of revenue adjustments

During the 2015/16 year-end process, work was performed to correct historical billings and journal entries were processed to correct 
historical revenue and the debtors balance.The debtors balance contained a number of invalid entries which were not reconciled or 
tested for recoverability or validity at the 2015/16 year-end. These entries were inspected during 2016/17 and a number of them 
were found to be invalid. The impact of correcting the error is as follows:

Statement of Financial Performance

Decrease in debt impairment reversal 21 176

Increase in Basic salaries expense 46

Decrease in revenue from leases 1 779

23 001

Statement of Financial Position: Current liabilities

Decrease in trade receivables (29 542)

Statement of net assets

Heading

Decrease in opening balance accumulated surplus 6 541

Error 5 - Incorrect processing of audit adjustments - Inventory

During 2015/2016, work was performed in order to correct the inventory register, but some errors were made 
processing the journal entries for the corrections and in presenting the inventory note.
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Statement of financial performance

Decrease in cost of sales (1 129)

Statement of financial position: Current Assets

Increase in inventory 1 129

Error 6: Incomplete accruals

During 2016/17 financial year the accruals and expenses relating to software costs were not complete.  
The impact of recognising the exepnses is as follows:

Statement of financial position: Current Liabilities

Increase Trade Payables (781)

Statement of financial performance

Increase in Software expenses 781

Error 7: Sold vehicles included in finance lease receivable

Vehicles that were sold as at the end of the 2014/15 and 2015/16 years respectively were incorrectly included 
in finance lease receivables for these years. The impact of correcting the errors is as follows:

Statement of net assets

Decrease in opening balance accumulated surplus 3

Statement of financial position: Non-Current Assets

Decrease in non-current finance lease receivables (1 765)

Statement of financial position: Current Assets

Statement of financial performance

Increase in cost of sales 1 762
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Error 8: Revenue not adjusted for cut off and overbilled

In the current financial period vehicles that were not billed in prior years were billed however the revenue relating to those prior 
periods was allocated to the current year. The impact of correcting the error is as follows:

Statement of net assets

Accumulated Surplus 49 993

Statement of financial position: Current Assets

Receivables (38 995)

Statement of financial performance

Revenue (10 999)

3. Inventories

Vehicles held for sale 14 748 9 147

14 748 9 147

Inventories (write-downs) (1 245) (617)

13 503 8 530

Carrying value of inventories carried at net realisable value 5 280 14

Inventories recognised as part of cost of sales during the year 64 664 105 785
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5. Intangible assets

2017 2016

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

and
accumulated 

impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

and
accumulated 

impairment

Carrying value

Computer software 2 475 (546) 1 929 620 (522) 98

Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2017

Opening 
balance

Additions Amortisation Total

Computer software 98 1 855 (24) 1 929

Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2016

Opening 
balance

Amortisation Total

Computer software 123 (25) 98



Gauteng Provincial Government | Department of Roads and Transport | Annual Report | 2016/2017

| 329 |

g-FleeT Management
Formerly Government Garage
Trading as g-FleeT Management
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
2017 2016

Restated*

 ‘000  ‘000

6. Finance lease receivables

Gross investment in the lease due

– within one year 12 345 26 408

– in second to fifth year inclusive 20 397 16 216

32 742 42 624

less: Unearned finance revenue (11 551) (7 345)

Present value of minimum lease payments receivable 21 191 35 279

less: allowance for uncollectible minimum lease payments (5 552) (9 936)

15 639 25 343

Present value of minimum lease payments due

– within one year

3 935 13 140

– in second to fifth year inclusive 11 604 12 203

15 539 25 343

The Entity entered into finance leasing arrangements for certain of its motor vehicles.

The average lease term is 4.5 years and the average effective lending rate is 3%.

None of the finance lease receivables have been pledged as security for liabilities or contingent liabilities.

Finance lease receivables impaired

Reconciliation of provision for impairment

Opening balance 9 936 7 785

Provision for impairment (4 384) 2 151

5 552 9 936
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7. Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade receivables 167 823 113 530

Other receivables - Revenue from auction of vehicles 25 873 30 036

Other debtors - Traffic fines and accident claims 11 550 6 499

205 246 150 065

Balance as at 31 March 2017: Gross 
Balance

Impairment 
provision

Net balance

Trade Receivables 269 904 (102 081) 167 823

Other receivables - Revenue from auction of vehicles 25 873 - 25 873

Other debtors - Traffic fines and accident claims 13 577 (2 027) 11 550

309 354 (104 108) 205 246

Balances as at 31 March 2016: Gross 
Balance

Impairment 
provision

Net balance

Trade Receivables 224 838 (111 308) 113 530

Other receivables - Revenue from auction of vehicles 30 036 - 30 036

Other debtors - Traffic fines and accident claims 8 526 (2 027) 6 499

263 400 (113 335) 150 065

g-FleeT’s fundamental objective (and mandate) is focused toward servicing all Government Departments within South Africa. As a 
result all receivables are due from Provincial and National Departments, including Public Entities and Municipalities respectively.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

31 to 60 days 23 260 27 641

61 to 90 days 15 524 17 745

91 to 120 days 52 264 15 470

Greater than 120 days 123 661 83 963

214 709 144 819

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables from exchange transactions

Opening balance 113 335 120 387

Provision for impairment - refer to note 15 (9 227) (7 052)

104 108 113 335
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8. Prepayments

During the prior period the entity made prepayments to the Department of Roads and Transport relating to registration of vehicles 
and renewal of vehicle licenses and to Sanral for e-toll costs.

Prepayments 3 503 1 230

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 4 4

Bank balances 743 162 514 335

743 166 514 339

10. Finance lease obligation

Non-current liabilities 15 048 14 711

Current liabilities 600 1 445

15 648 16 156

As at 31 March 2017 Minumum
lease 

payments

Future 
finance 

charged

Present value  
of minimum 

lease  
payments

Within One Year 1 876 (1 276) 600

Within Two To Five Years 5 230 (4 817) 413

Later Than Five Years 99 600 (84 965) 14 635

Subtotal 106 706 (91 058) 15 648

Less: Amount Due Within One Year (1 876) 1 276 (600)

104 830 (89 782) 15 048

As at 31 March 2016 Minumum
lease 

payments

Future 
finance 

charged

Present value  
of minimum 

lease  
payments

Within One Year 2 675 (1 230) 1 445

Within Two To Five Years 4 874 (4 800) 74

Later Than Five Years 100 800 (86 163) 14 637

Subtotal 108 349 (92 193) 16 156

Less: Amount Due Within One Year (2 675) 1 230 (1 445)

105 674 (90 963) 14 711



Gauteng Provincial Government | Department of Roads and Transport | Annual Report | 2016/2017

| 332 |

g-FleeT Management
Formerly Government Garage
Trading as g-FleeT Management
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements
2017 2016

Restated*

 ‘000  ‘000

The lease periods of agreements entered into by g-FleeT in the capacity as a lessee ranges from 2 to 99 years. Interest rates vary per 
lease agreement. The finance lease obligations, are secured by finance lease assets included in Property, Plant and Equipment.

11. Long-term leave accrual

As a result of the Bargaining Council’s Resolution 7 of 2000, unused leave that had accumulated to employees until 1 July 2000 
had to be capped and paid out to them upon resignation or retirement. The long-term leave accrual represents the amounts of 
capped leave still due to employees who have not yet resigned or retired.

12. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 85 014 60 181

13. Other payables

Acting CEO – Salary payable to DRT 1 135 -

Performance bonus accrual 353 1 160

Debtors with credit balance 3 361 -

Leave pay accrual 3 940 3 873

Service bonus accrual 1 990 1 647

10 779 6 680

Performance bonus accrual
Accruals were raised for performance bonusses that are due within the next 12 months.

Leave pay accrual
In terms of the Determination on Leave of Absence in the Public Service employees are entitled to annual leave with full pay during 
each leave cycle of 12 months, commencing on 1 January of each year. The remaining leave days, if any, must be taken no later 
than 6 months after the expiry of the relevant leave cycle, where after unused leave credits shall be forfeited.

Service bonus accrual
Accruals were raised for service bonus (13th cheque) and are due within the next 12 months.

Acting CEO Salary
The salary of the acting CEO is paid by DRT, g-FleeT is invoiced by DRT and the payable is due within 12 months.

Debtors with credit balances
The debtors with credit balances at the end of the year have been reclassified to trade payables.
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14. Revenue from Leases

Services income 7 364 12 074

Operating Lease 605 079 516 639

Toll Fees 5 526 4 907

Fuel and Oil 143 769 142 722

Traffic and Accident claims 5 221 15 413

Gain on Finance lease disposal 248 103

767 207 691 858

15. Debt Impairment (Reversal)

Finance lease receivable impairment 4 385 (2 151)

Receivables from exchange transactions impairment 9 227 7 052

13 612 4 901

16. Interest received

Interest revenue

Bank 31 657 17 907

Interest on finance lease receivables 5 840 10 184

37 497 28 091

17. Realisation of Property Lease Liability

Realisation of Property Lease Liability 1 200 1 200

During 2009, the then Gauteng Department of Public Transport Roads and Works entered into a rental agreement with the 
Gauteng Department of Infrastructure and Development on behalf of g-FleeT. In terms of this lease agreement, the monthly rental 
is R100,000 per month (amounting to a R1,2 million per annum) over the 99 year lease period. The rental agreement does not 
provide for any inflation, or inflationary adjustments.

The lease agreement further stipulates that the rental fees as paid by g-FleeT, that is in respect of the Entity’s Head Office (situated 
at No.16 Boeing Road East, Bedfordview) should be set off against any expenditure incurred by the Entity relating to leasehold 
improvements.

The Entity has recognised this contract as a finance lease, therefore accounts for this benefit as revenue from exchange 
transactions given the improvements that have been effected by g-FleeT.
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18. Employee related costs

Basic Salary 54 986 59 111

Performance Bonus (Reversal) (90) 600

Medical aid - company contributions 3 106 2 101

Pension 6 357 5 364

Workmen’s Compensation Act contribution 17 13

Leave pay accrual 314 814

Other short term costs 131 1 701

Overtime payments 2 057 486

13th Cheques 4 180 2 865

Acting allowances - 96

Housing benefits and allowances 4 291 4 620

75 349 77 771

Average number of employees 246 246

Other employee related costs consists of expenditure relating  to compensation due to injury on duty and other miscellaneous 
compensation that may have occurred in the year.
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19. General expenses

Advertising 515 931

Auditors remuneration 4 856 6 001

Bank charges 21 25

Computer expenses - 27

Consulting and professional fees 10 759 6 911

Consumables 1 734 1 833

Entertainment 10 58

Conferences and seminars 45 1 665

License fees – software 2 668 1 395

Marketing - 407

Levies 745 1 218

Motor vehicle expenses 3 293

Fuel and oil 152 247 147 137

Postage and courier 67 129

Printing and stationery 1 322 1 067

Security 3 602 3 714

Subscriptions and membership fees 16 41

Training 462 448

Travel - local 359 1 207

Tracking expenses 13 966 5 899

Vehicle theft and losses 4 467 5

Rental expenses - operating lease 4 282 5 012

Parking costs - 10

License fees - vehicles 6 211 3 159

Motor vehicle expenses - (RT46 costs) 10 640 16 314

Other expenses - 21

Inventory write down to net realisable value 1 014 537

220 011 205 464
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20. Cash generated from operations

Surplus Adjustments for: 297 599 223 588

Depreciation and amortisation 109 396 95 194

Interest income (5 840) (10 186)

Finance costs - Finance lease 1 325 1 539

Debt impairment (Reversal) (13 612) (4 901)

Non cash expenses - 2 068

Realisation of lease property (1 200) (1 200)

Gain on finance lease disposal (248) -

Inventory write-down to NRV 1 014 -

Vehicle Theft and losses 4 467 -

Changes in working capital:

Receivables from exchange transactions (45 954) 84 414

Prepayments (2 273) (649)

Cost of sales 64 718 107 547

Payables from exchange transactions 24 829 27 707

Payables from non-exchange transactions 3 231 2 217

437 452 527 338
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21. Financial instruments disclosure

Categories of financial instruments

2017

Financial assets

At 
amortised 

cost

Total

Receivables from exchange transactions 208 051 208 051

Cash and cash equivalents 743 166 743 166

951 217 951 217

Financial liabilities

At 
amortised 

cost

Total

Payables from exchange transactions 85 015 85 015

2016

Financial assets

At 
amortised 

cost

Total

Receivables from exchange transactions 150 056 150 056

Cash and cash equivalents 514 339 514 339

664 395 664 395

Financial liabilities

At 
amortised 

cost

Total

Payables from exchange transactions 60 186 60 186

Liquidity risk

gFleet’s exposure to liquidity risk consists of the risk that it will not have sufficient cash to pay liabilities as they fall due. gFleet 
manages liquidity risk so as to maintain a positive cash balance.

The total exposure to liquidity risk is represented by the trade and other payables and finance lease payable balance in these financial 
statements.

The entity manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments. Through this review, the Entity ensures that it 
has sufficient cash on demand or access to facilities to meet expected operational and capital expenses. The table below analyses 
the Entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position 
to the contractual  date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. The maturity profile for 
finance lease maturity payables is disclosed in the finance lease obligations note.
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21. Financial instruments disclosure (continued)

Maturity of financial liabilities - 2017 Due within  
1 month

Due within 2 - 
12 months

Due after 12  
months

Payables from exchange transactions 83 345 - -

Maturity of financial liabilities - 2016 Due within  
1 month

Due within 2 - 
12 months

Due after 12  
months

Payables from exchange transactions 60 181 - -

Credit risk 

Credit risk consists of cash and cash equivalents and receivables. g-FleeT Management considers it’s credit risk minimised as the 
entity only hold cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and trade and other receivables comprise of a Government 
customer base. Government debt is considered recoverable. All debtors that are neither past due not impaired are thus considered to 
be recoverable, although recovery may not be within the contractually agreed timeframes.The entity continues to render services to 
its defaulting customers so as to ensure government service delivery is not impeded by its clients.

gFleet establishes an impairment that represents its estimate of potential losses in respect of trade receivables. Further credit risk 
information is provided in the notes for receivables from exchange transactions and finance lease receivables.

Interest rate risk
The Entity is not entitled to charge interest on overdue debtors. The interest arising from finance lease receivables and payables 
arises from the interest rate implicit in leases and is not affected by market interest rates. Thus, the entity’s exposure to cash flow 
interest rate risk arises if it is required to pay interest on overdue trade and other payables. The extent of this risk amounts to market 
interest rates applied to the trade and other payables balance.
The Entity has a policy of paying suppliers within 30 days of the invoice date and interest rate risk exposure is managed through 
adherence to this policy.
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22. Commitments

Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

   Infrastructure 6 551 1 268

   Consulting fees 213 6 354

6 764 7 622

Authorised operational expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

   Open orders for goods and service 2 589 4 511

   Open orders for vehicles 19 556 59 645

   Consulting fees 3 516 1 838

25 661 65 994

Total commitments

Total commitments

Authorised capital expenditure 6 764 7 622

Authorised operational expenditure 25 661 65 994

32 425 73 616

23. Contingencies

Litigation:

Barloworld, Mbokoda and Imphopoma have all instituted legal claims against g-FleeT seeking damages.

Accident claims relate to the claims that have been instituted against g-FleeT in court, for damages caused to third-party vehicles  
by State drivers using g-fleeT vehicles. The counter-claims instituted by g-FleeT in respect of these claims amounts to R298,136 
(2016: R175,922). These counter claims are considered to be contingent assets.

The amounts below represent the Entity’s best estimate of the expected cash outflows that will arise from these legal cases and 
accident claims.

Contingent liabilities consists of:

Barloworld - Contract claim for outstanding invoices and accidents damages 1 000 1 000

Mbokoda - Application for: 1 Lien on Property, 2. Interdict to proceed with affected 3 484 3 484

construction on g-FleeT’s site and 3. Payments of various claims, by the relevant sub-contractors.

Housing Guarantees 42 42

Kgafela Construction - Claim for breach of contract 128 300

Third-party accident claims 2 757 2 606

7 411 7 432
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24. Related parties
All transactions with related parties are within normal supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more 
or less favourable than those which the Entity would have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person on terms and 
conditions within the normal operating parameters established by the reporting entity’s legal mandate.

25. Members’ emoluments

Executive

2017

Basic Salary 13th Cheque Pension  
paid or 

receivable

Other 
benefits

Total

Mr. Victor Mhangwana 753 - 98 225 1 076

Ms. Andile Ngcobo 553 47 72 251 923

Ms. Salomi Jafta 502 47 65 228 842

Ms. Ravanne Mathews 578 48 75 262 963

Mr. Thulani Mkwanazi (Transfered 15/03/2017) 553 47 72 251 923

Ms Noxolo Maninjwa - Acting from 01/10/2015 884 75 115 577 1 651

Mr Mongoeng Mathabathe (1 August 2016) 188 46 24 94 352

4 011 310 521 1 888 6 730

2016 

Basic Salary 13th Cheque Pension  
paid or 

receivable

Other 
benefits

Total

Mr. Chikane Chikane- Transferred 30/09/2015 485 - 63 123 671

Ms. Natalie Govender - Transferred 30/09/2015 393 - 51 117 561

Mr. Victor Mhangwana 730 - 95 218 1 043

Mr. Sishi Hlalanathi - Resigned 31/01/2016 407 46 53 205 711

Ms. Tebogo Mokete 550 46 72 249 917

Ms. Andile Ngcobo 519 43 67 235 864

Ms. Salomi Jafta 519 43 67 235 864

Ms. Ravanne Mathews 542 45 70 246 903

Mr. Thulani Mkwanazi 526 44 68 239 877

Ms. Noxolo Maninjwa - Acting from 01/10/2015 515 9 67 259 850

5 186 276 673 2 126 8 261

The CFO office is held by a consultant, the cost relating to CFO is disclosed as part of the consultants costs. Refer to note 19.
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26. Events after the reporting date
There are no subsequent events to be reported upon.

27. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening Balance 14 499 12 532

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - relating to the current year - 1 959

Cedman Consulting and Projects - 8

Prior period unauthorised petrol card use discovered in current period 340 -

Current period unauthorized petrol card use 926 -

Current period interest charges 1 489 -

Current period vehicle write-off resulting from unauthorized vehicle use 194 -

Current period fruitless rental expense 300 -

17 748 14 499

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relates to interest incurred on overdue accounts and expenditure incurred due to unauthorized use 
of petrol cards and motor vehicles. The change in the accounting system used by the Entity has resulted in a delays in the settlement 
of accounts by g-FleeT, resulting in interest incurred. The matter has been looked into and is being remedied.

An investigation is underway and legal processes have been undertaken as a form of remediation against the individuals responsible 
for the unauthorized use of the Entity’s petrol cards and motor vehicles.

The fruitless rental expenditure relates topreises being rented but not used. This is under investigation.
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28. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance 42 691 47 530

Add: Irregular Expenditure – current year 17 114 2 565

Less: Amounts condoned - (7 404)

59 805 42 691

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification

Current year 17 114 2 565

Prior years 42 691 40 126

59 805 42 691

Details of irregular expenditure  Disciplinary steps taken/ 
– current year criminal proceedings

Expired property lease contract Under investigation 1 505

Expired vehicle tracker contracts Under investigation 10 665

Expired office equipment contract Under investigation 291

Expired contracts for PABX charges Under investigation 224

Expired cleaning services contract Under investigation 1 198

Expired carpark lease contract Under investigation 109

Expired security contract Under investigation 3 122

17 114

29. Other income

Revenue from Transport Income 1 618 1 556

Sundry Income 112 -

1 730 1 556

30. Finance costs 

Late payment of suppliers 1 489 -

Finance leases 1 325 1 539

2 814 1 539
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